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Have a fresh
Mg TE B YA

CP Lotus is determined to offer customers with the fresh and pleasurable
shopping experience via our great variety of high-quality merchandise at
saving price, the clean, tidy and comfortable environment, as well as warm
and friendly service. Each year over 300 million customers enjoy their
shopping at CP Lotus.

Currently, CP Lotus received a number of national awards and recognition
which are China Food Health Seven Star Prize, CCFA Retail Innovation
Awards, and China Best Corporate University Awards for its retail
management course run by CPCU.
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C.P. Lotus Corporation (“CP Lotus”) is one of the leading retail operators in
China. CP Lotus currently owns and operates 57 retail stores under the brand
name “Lotus”, offering fresh and pleasurable shopping experience to all families
by providing a neat and comfortable environment, an assortment of high-quality
and safe merchandise, and a warm and friendly service.

Our ultimate shareholder, Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (“CP
Group”), is one of the leading conglomerates in Asia with over 90 years of
operating experience in various industries including agro-industrial, retail and
telecom. While the CP Group is headquartered in Thailand, it is one of the oldest
and largest foreign investors in China today.
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Store Network
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Financial Highlights
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Chaiman’s Statement
FERES

The Group recorded revenue of RMB10,677.4 million and a loss
attributable to shareholders of the Company was RMB391.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012. Same store sales recorded a negative
growth of 3.9%. Included in the losses was a provision of RMB44.1 million
for the reduction in deferred tax assets which is non-cash in nature.

2012 was a difficult year amid the general slowdown of the Chinese
economy and intensified competition. Nonetheless, the Group continued
our store expansion plan while we continued to work hard to improve
the performance of the existing portfolio. The Group opened two
hypermarkets in Guangzhou and one supermarket in Shanghai in 2012
and opened one hypermarket in Beijing in January 2013. The four new
stores are opened in cities where the Group already has an established
presence, further adding a total building area and sales area of 75,000
sgm and 27,500 sgm respectively.

AREBRBE-ZTE——F+ A=+ HLEEHBHERARY
10,677,400,0007T » A2 ) IR R FEAL B 18 X8 A K %5391,500,00077T °
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREE

Prospects

We recognise the need to drive change in order to become
competitive. New management team is in place and focus
in 2013 will be investments in key enablers of the growth
plan — retail store, merchandise offering, IT and supply chain
infrastructure, customer services and new stores. We believe
we will see improvement in 2013.

Board Change

During the year, a number of changes have taken place in the
Board. Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont stepped down as Chairman
and | would like to pay tribute to Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont for
the vision, drive and strategic insight he contributed. | would
also like to express my sincere thanks to Mr. Robert Ping-
Hsien Ho, Mr. Shih Hong-Mo and Mr. Chokchai Kotikula
for their valuable contribution during their tenure of office.
We were pleased to welcome Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed as
Executive Director and Vice Chairman and Messrs. Songkitti
Jaggabatara, Itthaporn Subhawong and Prasobsook Boondech
as Independent Non-Executive Directors, bringing with them a
wealth of experience in their respective field of expertise.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity, on behalf of the Board,
to extend our appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders,
banks and vendors for their continuing trust and support, and
to our management and staff for their dedicated hard work and
commitment throughout the past year.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

22 February 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2012 was a very difficult year for the Group. Substantial cost
increases caused in particular by the rise in minimum wage,
negative same store sales growth, falling gross profit margin
all contributed to the substantial losses recorded. Like all other
retailers in the industry, the Group was affected by macro-economic
circumstances, the slowing down of the economy, both in terms of
GDP growth and retail sales growth, the intensified competition and
the rapid emergence of online retailing which changes the shopping
behaviours of many customers which in turn partly led to a drop in
customer visits.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded net loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the 12 months ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year”)
of RMB391.5 million (2011: profit of RMB23.8 million).

EEENWmER DN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEREBARR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—FE——Ff+ZHA=+—HULFE

2012 2011 Change Change
—E-C-F —E-—-F 28 25
RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEER ARBEER ARBEER %
Turnover EXE 10,677.4 10,019.3 658.1 6.6
Gross profit EF 1,763.1 1,775.6 (12.5) (0.7)
Other revenue and Hitlm R
other net (loss)/income (B8B) WA FE 428.0 394.8 33.2 8.4
Distribution and BIERER
store operating costs EEM K (1,999.4) (1,657.2) (342.2) 20.6
Adminstrative expenses THER (427.3) (328.8) (98.5) 30.0
Finance costs & AR (88.9) (149.7) 60.8 (40.6)
Income Tax FEH (67.1) (10.9) (56.2) 515.6
(Loss)/profit for the Year FE(BB) &R (391.6) 23.8 (415.4)  (1,745.4)
(Loss)/profit for the Year LTALEEEE
attributable to: (E#8),&8H
Equity shareholders of the Company 7R A BB R (391.5) 23.8 (415.3) (1,745.0)
Non-controlling interests FERER (0.1) - (0.1) n/a
(391.6) 23.8 (415.4)  (1,745.4)

Turnover increased by RMB658.1 million or 6.6% to RMB10,677.4
million. The increase was due to revenue generated by the four
hypermarkets in Wuxi, Xuzhou, Hefei and Changsha acquired
from Whole Sino Limited (“Whole Sino”) on 1 January 2012 (the
“Acquisition”) and the three new stores opened in 2012 of which
two in Guangzhou and one in Shanghai. Same store sales fell 3.9%
due to general slowdown of the Chinese economy and the rapid
emergence of online retailing led to change in spending habits
resulting in fewer buying frequency. The increase in ticket was
unable to compensate for the drop in customer counts.

BRI A R¥658,100,0007T 56.6%
= AR %10,677,400,0007T ° 18 3 AR &
—&— "% — H— HM™Whole Sino Limited
(TWhole Sinol) WtBE R AL ~ M - &
EEREDzABEBT (WBEE])EE 2K
ARRZBE——ERARZZZHE  ETWMR
NREMNE —REUNLE - APBEEBEZ B
12 ELLEMHEETEION LA LSESEE
RSHEEBEREMEHENDARTE - FE
MR REEIRE TR ZEE AR
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Gross profit margin was 16.5% of sales (2011: 17.7%). Gross
margin is comprised of front and back margin. Front margin is sales
minus direct cost of sales; back margin represents income from
suppliers such as discounts and allowances. Front margin dropped
from 9.5% to 8.3%, primarily a combined result of heavier mark-
down and more promotion activities to reduce inventory stocked
up for seasonal and tab sale; and the sale contribution from fresh
increased while margin of this category dropped as we were not
able pass on the higher cost in full to our customers in order not to
further affect sales. Back margin remained relatively stable at 8.2%
compared to 2011.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

EMNBRDIBEHE216.5% (ZFE ——F :
17.7%) - ERNRBA A FBEZ ST BEHRA
BB AR BHIEHEENEEEHERSN; %,
R EERBHERT WA - T REE, -
BAAEBE.5% FEES3%  TEHMARD
EEz2FEMARIEEE  SHEERESREER
HHEZEETE MEELH AR ZHESE
BN BRI 2 ENMETE - HERMEELEE
oA ENEEFEERFEE-—SHEEE
oMY -ZE—— & 27 BESHEAETE
MN8.2% o

=%
. 16.5% 17.7%
(1]
15% )
8.2% 8.2%
10%
5%
0%

2012

2011

Other revenue and other net (loss)/income was RMB428.0 million
(2011: RMB394.7 million), comprised mainly lease income which
is income received from leasing of store space. Lease income
increased by RMB83.7 million to RMB369.4 million, or 3.5% of sales
(2011: 2.9%), primarily as a result of the Acquisition and the opening
of three new stores. Included in the balance was a provision for
lease cancellation of RMB21.0 million and loss of disposal on fixed
assets of RMB20.3 million.

Distribution and store operating costs was RMB1,999.4 million,
approximately 18.7% of sales (2011: 16.5%). It comprised mainly
stores rental, personnel expenses, utilities and depreciation and
amortisation charges for a total of RMB1,653.0 million and 5.4%,
6.3%, 2.0% and 1.8% of sales respectively. Personnel expenses
increased by approximately RMB148.5 million to RMB677.0 million
primarily as a result of increased in statutory minimum wages
across China, the Acquisition, the opening of three new stores and
a provision of RMB24.3 million for restructuring cost relating to the
store level restructuring.

Administrative expenses were RMB427.3 million, or 4.0% of sales
compared to RMB328.8 million, or 3.3% of sales in 2011. It mainly
included personnel expenses of RMB302.0 million, including a
provision of RMB18.6 million for restructuring cost relating to the
organisational restructuring at corporate level, depreciation and
amortisation charges of RMB18.8 million, rental of RMB22.3 million
and professional fee of RMB12.6 million.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial costs were RMB88.9 million, or 0.8% of sales, a
decrease of RMB60.8 million from the corresponding year in 2011.
The reduction was due to the repayment of bank and other loans
utilizing the proceeds from the open offer.

Income tax increased RMB56.2 million to RMB67.1 million (2011:
RMB10.9 million) was a result of expiration/utilisation of prior year
recognised deferred tax assets of tax loss carried forward of certain
PRC subsidiaries.

Net loss attributable to shareholders of the Company was
RMB391.5 million compared to a net profit of RMB23.8 million in
2011 as a result of negative same store sales growth, drop in margin
and increase in expenses.

Capital expenditure was RMB281.4 million for the Year under
review, mainly for the opening of new stores and store renovation.
The Group financed its capital expenditure through a combination of
cash generated from its operating activities and banking facilities.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EEENWmER DN
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As at 31 December 2012

KR-®—=%+=H=+-A

2012 2011 Change Change
—E-Cf —E——f BE BE

RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEER ARBEER AREEHER %
Fixed assets BEEE 1,836.8 1,691.3 145.5 8.6
Goodwill (kS 3,154.3 2,719.8 434.5 16.0
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEH 416.0 242.4 173.6 71.6
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 214.8 143.2 71.6 50.0
Inventories 7E 908.6 1,177.1 (268.5) (22.8)
Trade and other receivables EERAMERE 847.9 580.3 267.6 46.1
Other assets HithEE 338.9 355.1 (16.2) (4.6)
Total Assets HEE 7,7117.3 6,909.2 808.1 11.7
Bank and other loans RITREMER 1,410.3 879.5 530.8 60.4
Trade payables and other liabilities 2 EEMNFEREMER 4,234.3 4,027.2 207.1 5.1
Total liabilities waE 5,644.6 4,906.7 737.9 15.0
Net Assets EEFH 2,072.7 2,002.5 70.2 3.5
Share capital fR AR 386.4 340.6 45.8 13.4
Reserves FRc] 1,684.5 1,660.0 24.5 15
Non-controlling Interests FERESR 1.8 1.9 (0.1) (5.3)
Shareholders’ Equity B R 2,072.7 2,002.5 70.2 3.5

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Fixed assets changes mainly represent additions of fixed assets of
RMB281.4 million for opening of new stores and store renovation
and RMB85.7 million as a result of the Acquisition; depreciation and
amortisation for the Year of RMB197.5 million, and fixed assets with
carrying amount of RMB23.5 million was disposed of during the
Year under review.

Goodwill of RMB3,154.3 million represent the goodwill amount of
RMB2,719.8 million arising from the Company’s acquisition of the
21 Lotus stores owned by Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store
Co., Ltd. in prior years and additional interest in Qingdao Lotus
Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. and Shantou Lotus Supermarket
Chain Store Co., Ltd. in October 2008 and RMB434.5 million arising
from the Acquisition during the Year under review. Impairment test
on the goodwill value is carried out annually based on a number of
market assumptions including discount rates, forecast growth rates
and expected changes to direct prices and selling costs and no
impairment of goodwill was recorded for 2012.

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB416.0 million as of
Year end (2011: RMB242.4 million).

Pledged bank deposits of RMB214.8 million as at 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB143.2 million), an increase of RMB71.6 million.
The increase mainly due to the increase of the issuance of bank
accepted bills for payments to suppliers during the Year.

Inventories balance was RMB908.6 million as at 31 December
2012, a decrease of RMB268.5 million with an average inventory
turnover days of 43 days (2011: 44 days). The decrease in inventory
at the end of 2012 was due to the Chinese New Year calendar shift
with Chinese New Year fell on February in 2013 and on January in
2012.

Trade and other receivables increased by 46.1% to RMB847.9
million (2011: RMB580.3 million). Included in the balance was
RMB223.8 million (2011: RMB221.3 million) of trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits from suppliers and third parties, and
apart from rental deposits of RMB56.1 million, they are expected to
be recovered within one year and thus no provision was made. Also
included in the balance was RMB624.2 million (2011: RMB358.9
million) of receivables from related companies, an increase of
RMB265.3 million.

Receivables from related companies were primarily merchandise
supplied by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to C.P. Holding (BVI)
Investment Company Limited (“CPH”) and its related entities under
various supply agreements. Discount and allowances received by
the Group from suppliers in respect of the merchandise sold to CPH
and its related entities is captured by the Group. We will continue to
work closely with Whole Sino to expedite collection.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Other assets of RMB338.9 million mainly comprised of intangible
assets of RMB219.2 million, deferred tax assets of RMB65.1 million
and prepaid lease payments for premises of RMB44.6 million.
Intangible assets of relate to operating lease agreements acquired
in the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and the Acquisition during
the Year. The intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line
method over the remaining lease terms which vary from 10 to 30
years.

Bank and other loans of RMB1,410.3 million as at 31 December
2012, an increase of RMB530.8 million mainly due to the Group has
drawn down floating rate bank loans of USD172.0 million (equivalent
to RMB1,084.0 million) and repayment of bank loans equivalent to
RMB585.8 million during the Year under review.

LOAN PORTFOLIO
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Loans from Loans from
Bank loans third parties related parties Total
EZhRM HEBALRE
RITEX ZER ZER k-]
RMB million RMB miillion RMB million RMB miillion
ARBEER AREBER ARBEER ARKEER
Within one year —£R 1,258.2 55.1 97.0 1,410.3
Over one year —F#% - - - -
Total iz 1,258.2 55.1 97.0 1,410.3

RMB1,258.2 million were three bank loans extended by a Thai
syndicate led by The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company
Limited with a term of seven years. As at 31 December 2012, the
Company was in breach of certain financial covenants included
in the bank loan facility agreements, and therefore, RMB1,206.5
million of the bank loans which were scheduled to be repaid after 31
December 2013 have been classified as bank loans due within one
year. Subsequent to the Year end, the Company obtained a waiver
from the banks in respect of its non-compliance with the financial
covenants as at 31 December 2012.

Trade payables and other liabilities as at 31 December 2012
was RMB4,234.3 million (2011: RMB4,027.2 million) of which
RMB3,899.4 million (2011: RMB3,677.0 million) was trade and
payables due to third parties while the remaining was payables to
related parties.

A R #1,258,200,000t & LLThe Siam
Commercial Bank Public Company Limited
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Reserves balance was RMB1,684.5 million as at 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB1,660.0 million). The increase of RMB24.5
million mainly represents increase in share premium of HK$484.8
million (equivalent to RMB393.1 million) for the issuance of Series
D convertible preference shares as the consideration for the
Acquisition and HK$29.7 million (equivalent to RMB24.2 million)
for the issuance of ordinary shares as a result of exercise of share
options granted on 6 June 2002. The loss for the Year and decrease
in exchange reserve set off the effect of share premium during the
Year.

Capital structure

The Group finances its own working capital requirement through a
combination of funds generated from operations, bank and other
borrowings.

Liquidity and finance resources

During the Year, the Group’s sources of funds were generated
primarily from operating activities and banking facilities. The net
cash and cash equivalents increase was mainly due to drawdown of
additional bank and other loans during the Year. As at 31 December
2012, the Company was in breach of certain financial covenants
included in the bank loan facility agreement and a waiver of such
breach was obtained from the banks subsequent to the Year, further
details referred to note 23 to the financial statements. Based on the
Group’s 2013 business plan and cash flow forecast, we expected
we will generate sufficient cash flows to meet our business needs
and its liabilities as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months.
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BRIBITRHE -RERRESESHFHEEMEER
HRFEARNBEMITRABER - R=F
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ROEBRITEBURER 2R  E—DF
BERMBEREME23 - REAEE T —=
FeRBHEARBRESREFER - ~AREREHS
EEZRRENE  WENEBAFERANK
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2012 2011

—2--% =-B2——%

Cash and cash equivalents (RMB million) RekReEH(ARBEETR 416.0 242.4

Bank and other loans (RMB million) RTREMER(ARBEEET) 1,410.3 879.5
Net cash inflow/(outflow) after effect of BERA i) F5

foreign exchange rate changes (REEIIBEREES HE)

(RMB million) (AR¥EBEER) 173.6 (46.0)
Current ratio (x) TENLE Z (1F) 0.44 0.54
Quick ratio (x) RENLE Z (1F) 0.27 0.25
Gearing ratio (x) EREEELE (1)

(defined as bank and other loans (ARITR EAME K

divided by total equity) FRUBRERETE) 0.68 0.44
During the Year under review, bank loans bear interest at three- REIEFEER  RITEFE=EAGIERTE

month London Interbank Offered Rate plus 3.25% per annum and
other loans bear interest ranging from 1.81% to 7.393% per annum.

Foreign currency exposure
The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations are all

based in the PRC, the Group is therefore not exposed to significant
currency risk in its retail operations.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from bank loans
held by certain PRC subsidiaries, which are denominated in US
dollars (“USD”). In respect of the USD bank loans borrowed in
Hong Kong, as HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rate; and
in respect of the USD bank loans borrowed by PRC subsidiaries,
despite the recent fluctuations, RMB is expected to continue to
appreciate in the coming years, the Group also does not expect any
negative impact of foreign currency risk in the PRC subsidiaries.
Therefore, the Group has not undertaken any foreign currency
hedging activities. The Group however will monitor closely the
USD/RMB exchange rate movements and will consider hedging the
currency risk as and when necessary.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had issued two guarantees
to an independent third party which expire in 2025 and two
guarantees to a bank which expire in April 2013 and July 2013
respectively in respect of finance lease arrangements entered
into by its subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it probable
that claims will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at 31 December
2012 under the guarantees issued was 100% of the future minimum
lease payments under the lease agreements entered into by the
subsidiaries of RMB100.0 million.

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had a share charge created
in favour of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong
Branch (“BBL”) on 16 December 2011 whereby the Company
agreed to pledge all shares of its subsidiary, Prime Global Retail
Management & Advisory Limited to BBL. An equitable share
mortgage had been created by the Company in favour of BBL on 16
December 2011 whereby the Company agreed to pledge all shares
of its subsidiaries, Chia Tai Trading (Beijing) Company Limited,
Chia Tai Trading (Qingdao) Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading
(Xian) Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading (Zhengzhou) Company
Limited, Chia Tai Distribution Investment Company Limited, Yangtze
Supermarket Investment Co. Limited and Union Growth Investments
Limited (“Union Growth”) to BBL.

As at 31 December 2012, an equitable share mortgage had been
created by Union Growth in favour of BBL on 16 December 2011
whereby Union Growth agreed to pledge all shares of its subsidiary,
Lotus-CPF (PRC) Investment Company Limited (“Lotus-CPF”) and
10,821,033 shares of Chia Tai-Lotus (Guangdong) Investment Co.
Ltd. (“CT-Lotus”) to BBL. An equitable mortgage had been created
by Lotus-CPF in favour of BBL on 16 December 2011 whereby
Lotus-CPF agreed to pledge 97,389,312 shares of its subsidiary,
CT-Lotus to BBL.
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The abovementioned share charge and equitable share charges in
favour of BBL were created to secure the Group’s term loan facility
of USD200 million which will expire on 31 December 2018 with
installment payments scheduled during its term.

Employees, training and remuneration policy

The Group employed approximately 16,600 employees as at
31 December, 2012, of which approximately 1,600 were head office
staff and approximately 15,000 were store employees. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing market rate. Other employee benefits include
insurance and medical cover, subsidised training programs as well
as share option scheme for directors and senior management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Store network

During the Year under review, the Group opened two hypermarkets
in Guangzhou and one supermarket in Shanghai and the Group
opened one hypermarket in Beijing on 27 January 2013. The four
new stores are opened in cities where the Group already has an
established presence, further adding a total building area and
sales area of 75,000 sgm and 27,500 sgm respectively. In addition,
the Group acquired 4 hypermarkets in Wuxi, Xuzhou, Hefei and
Changsha from Whole Sino on 1 January 2012.

The Group now has 57 retail stores including 53 hypermarkets,
2 supermarkets and 2 Lotus Life Stations.

Optimisation of merchandise

In the second half of the Year under review, we set up a National
Food Commercial team and a National Non-Food Commercial team
in line with the new centralised function strategy to enhance our
merchandise competitiveness. The benefits of a centralised buying
function is not only strengthening of the Group’s procurement scale
advantages but also inventory level is better managed with no
out-of-stock for fast selling items and under-performing products
are not stocked unnecessarily. Centralised buying can also allow
popular products in one region can be introduced to the stores in
other regions, thus broadening our merchandise assortment. In
addition, we have set up a National Commercial Support team and
a National Commercial Analysis team; the former focuses on vendor
management and trade planning and the latter provides detailed
analysis of product performance, generating weekly tracking report
for both sales and margin tracking thus enabling the team to make
better and more informed decision on merchandise assortment
and facilitate cooperation with marketing department to formulate
marketing strategy.
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In order to remain price competitive, 1,000 “sensitive” items are sold
at base price. These sensitive items are mainly grocery products
and the prices are set according to sensitivity of merchandise and
prices and sales of local competitors which are monitored closely
on a weekly basis. In addition, we also rely on market research
agency to tell us our market positioning and customer preferences
etc to adjust our merchandise strategy accordingly.

The quality and safety of our products remains utmost importance
to Lotus. We continued to review and strengthen our quality
control measures through supply chain and vendor development to
ensure product integrity. One of our stores in Shanghai is HACCP
certified and although China has suspended HACCP certification of
supermarket from May 2012, we will continue to improve our food
safety through the adoption of HACCP standards and procedures.

We continued to work closely with our suppliers to improve
customer shopping experience through product innovation,
co-brand marketing activities and customer centricity. We have
formed strategic partnership with 22 nationwide vendors to develop
joint business plan. We will continue to strengthen our relationship
through resource sharing and people collaboration and plan to
expand the partnership to over 30 nationwide vendors in 2013.

Improvement of operation efficiency

The Group conducted a detailed review of the store operation
model and acknowledged that the model needs to be redefined to
benchmark industry best practice in order to be competitive. Under
the new model, the staffing level will be determined based on the
revenue and number of customers of the store. The implementation
of the new store operation model will take place in the first quarter
of 2013. With the centralised strategy, we have also managed to
reduce the number of regional offices from six to four.

We understand the importance for management to be able to
monitor and manage the performance of different business units and
make better business decisions based on accurate and up-to-date
data and information. In early 2012, we started the development of
Business Intelligence (“Bl”) project to generate business intelligence
analysis from data collected from various accounting and vendor
management systems. Phase | of the project is now completed and
Bl on iPad devices will be launched in 2013.

We continued to reinforce the store productivity improvement
through replacement of more advanced equipment and utilisation of
technology to reduce manual work. Some of our stores are already
using Telxon scanner, this helps to provide a more accurate sales
and inventory level of the products. We also started to replace our
POS devices to improve store check and thus customer satisfaction
by reducing their waiting time at the till.
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We started upgrading the store membership system which allows
the Lotus membership card to be used nationwide instead of only
locally/regionally at present. The information gathered can allow the
marketing team to analyse spending behaviours and preferences
and devise a nationwide marketing strategy and special tailored
membership promotions to improve sales and enhance customer
loyalty. We plan to carry out pilot test in our stores in Shanghai and
will roll this out to the rest of the stores throughout 2013.

We continued our commitment to total quality management (“TQM”)
to achieve operational excellence. Currently 45 of our stores and 4
distribution centres (“DCs”) are 1SO 9001 certified. We will continue
to work on improving and implementing our TQM principles and aim
to have 5 more stores seeking ISO9001 certification by end of June
2013.

Optimisation of supply chain management

During the Year under review, a number of changes were made
to improve the overall DCs and inventory management. We set up
regular DC to DC delivery so that our Shanghai DC can deliver the
top selling items to the stores served by the Xian and Beijing DCs.
We added 40 feet container to replace 10 tons truck and we were
able to reduce the transportation cost with additional agreed time
to deliver to stores in Jiangsu, Xian, Zhengzhou and Beijing. We
also revised our ordering parameter in vendor lead-time whereas
we talk to each vendor and try to accommodate what their delivery
requirements are instead of imposing what we want them to do. This
helps not only to improve vendor relationship but also enables us
to measure the service level of the vendors. In addition, previously
purchase orders are cancelled if delivery is not made after three
days from due delivery with no follow up; now the purchase order
will be cancelled one day after due delivery and our replenishment
team will call up the vendor to understand the situation and make
sure the goods will be delivered on time with the quantity matching
the purchase order.

Major marketing activities to enhance brand awareness and
customer loyalty

During the Year under review, the Group celebrated its 15th
anniversary since the opening of its first store in Shanghai in June
1997. A series of marketing activities was launched across the
country to mark this joyful occasion including free redemption of
Zwilling cookware for purchase over a certain amount. These 15th
anniversary promotional activities further enhanced our brand image
among customers. Besides, 2012 was also a year of Olympics and
many Olympics-themed activities were organised such as “Lotus
VIP Passport to Gold” and “Guess Gold Medal, Win Fabulous Prize”.

In addition, we started an end-to-end review of our customer loyalty
program. We currently have a total membership of approximately
4.7 million and approximately 40% of sales were from our members.
We want to make it rewarding to be a member of Lotus by providing
exclusive offers and benefits, easy redemption at check out and
more interesting and relevant communications. Our aim is to
increase membership sales to 60% of sales by the end of 2013.
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Continued store innovation

The Group continued its efforts to transform our stores into
lifestyle model to provide one-stop shopping convenience, a more
comfortable shopping environment and bring in more varieties to
our customers. During the Year under review, we have completed
the renovation of 5 stores. In 2013, we plan to remodel 2 stores
and refresh 10 stores and we will take advantage of the scale of
renovation to reduce costs.

Social responsibility

Observing the business mission — “For the Country, For the People
and For the Company”, the Group continued to be actively involved
in community, focusing on helping and developing people. A
number of activities had been organised including the “Pink Spring”
women care charity activity designed to help women in need; “Warm
Your Heart in New School Year” activity which presented 200 gift
packages for each university in the Shanghai Songjiang University
Town and the “Lotus Heart Brings Warmth” where Lotus Heart
volunteers visited Shanghai Pudong Foster Home for the Disabled.

People development

Training and development remains one of the Group’s strategic
priorities in attracting, developing and retaining a knowledgeable
and skilled workforce. The Group launched “Mission to Success”
(“MTS”) program, a professional leadership action learning
program in 2012. Over 40 senior executives and 20 young leaders
participated in the program aiming to address some fundamental
strategic and operational issues the Group face.

In 2012, the Group continued to reinforce the performance
management process which focused on building a performance
culture. Performance Score Card for key functions was developed
and this will be rolled out to nationwide in 2013. To help new
recruits to better understand the company culture and learn
professional skills quickly, we are preparing a new orientation
program with more comprehensive and practical content with a
more flexible and interactive approach.

In 2013, the Group will launch the HR Information System by phases
to improve data accuracy, work efficiency and staff satisfaction.
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LOOKING FORWARD

Recognising the urgent need for change to ensure its continued
viability, the new management team conducted a comprehensive
review on both the business model as well as the operation model
of the Group in the second half of the Year under review. Following
the review, a number of changes have been introduced.

From the business model perspective, the Group will pursue
potential strategic options for its non-core business lines to focus
on re-engineering core hypermarket operations and develop
a sustainable supermarket model for growth. The key change
in operational model is the strategy of centralisation where a
centralised management team with clear defined functions and
responsibilities was established. The immediate benefit of this is
the reduction of the number of regional headquarters from six to
four. Previously, regional headquarters were responsible for both
driving and executing strategies, under the new structure, regional
headquarters will be focusing on execution only while strategies
formulation and planning will come directly from the management
team in Shanghai headquarter to ensure uniformed and consistent
strategy and action is implemented nationwide. In addition, store
operation model has been redefined with staffing level determined
by store revenue and number of customer visits and this new model
will be implemented before the first quarter of 2013. At corporate
level, we have carried out a detailed understanding of tasks by role
to remove duplicate and redundant activities and staffing level has
been reduced following the review, there will be phase Il and phase
Il of restructuring and both phases will be completed in 2013. We
are building a more efficient and more cost-effective workforce in
order to stay relevant in this competitive and dynamic industry.

Each business function has prepared a detailed action plan for 2013
with strategic priorities mapped out. We believe that with all these
new initiatives in place and with consistent execution, the Group will
be able to return to profitability in 2013.
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The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance that properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders at all times. The Board believes that
good corporate governance practices are the cornerstones for a
successful business, not an exercise in compliance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s corporate governance
guidelines and practices. During the year, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all the relevant code
provisions prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) except the deviation of the following Code
Provisions:—

Code Provision A.2.1

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were performed
by the same individual from 1 April 2012 to 31 July 2012. However,
the Board considered that the structure did not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Group.

Code Provision E.1.2

The Chairman did not attend the annual general meeting held on
22 June 2012 due to other important business engagement.

THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses. The Board decides
on corporate strategies and supervises the financial performance,
management and organisation on behalf of the shareholders.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
management of the Group’s businesses to certain executive
directors and senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises of fifteen
members, ten are executive directors (including a Chairman and five
Vice Chairmen) and five are independent non-executive directors.
Detailed biographies of the directors can be found on pages 26 to
28 of this annual report.

The title of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont has been changed from Vice
Chairman to Executive Chairman with effect from 1 January 2012.
His title of Executive Chairman has been changed to Chairman
with effect from 1 April 2012. On 1 August 2012, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont has resigned as Chief Executive Officer. Messrs.
Michael Ross and Yang Xiaoping have been re-designated as Vice
Chairmen respectively with effect from 1 January 2012.
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On 1 April 2012, Messrs. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed and Songkitti
Jaggabatara have been appointed as executive director & Vice
Chairman and independent non-executive director respectively;
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont has resigned as executive director and
Chairman; Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho has resigned as executive
director and Mr. Chokchai Kotikula has resigned as independent
non-executive director. On 31 December 2012, Messrs. Itthaporn
Subhawong and Prasobsook Boondech have been appointed as
independent non-executive directors and Mr. Shih Hong-Mo has
resigned as executive director.

Confirmation has been received from all independent non-executive
directors that they are independent as required by the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

Although Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, the roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company
respectively from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 were clearly
segregated with a view to maintain an effective segregation
of duties between management of the Board and day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

The roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company were performed
by Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont from 1 April 2012 to 31 July 2012.
However, the Board considered that the structure did not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group.

On 1 August 2012, Mr. Jimmy Ardell Schafer has been appointed as
CEO of the Company, maintaining a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and CEO.

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) is responsible for overseeing
the function of the Board and formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Company and providing leadership to the Board so
that the Board works efficiently and discharges its responsibilities
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely manner.

Mr. Jimmy Ardell Schafer (CEQO) is responsible for managing the
Group’s business and operations.

Board and Committee Attendance

The Board held four regular meetings in 2012, including the
performing of corporate governance functions for reviewing the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) and written
employee guidelines, and the compliance with the Code Provisions.
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Details of the attendance of each individual director at Board
meetings, committee meetings and shareholder meeting during
2012 are set out below:

No. of meetings attended/held

b/ BreEz A
Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit
Directors Shareholder Board Committee Committee Committee
gz BR Ezg R#zEg HHzEg EnzEg
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont AEREE - 1/1 - - -
(resigned on 1 April 2012) (R=E-—FEMA-AEHE)
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE 0/1 3/4 11 2/3 -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont EEE Yk 0/1 1/4 - - 1
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RIEE T4 17 3/3 - - 1
(appointed on 1 April 2012) (R=2--EMR-HEZH)
Mr. Michael Ross BFRAE 111 44 - - 1
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BhERE 0/ 0/4 - - -
Mr. Li Wen Hai TEEEE 0/1 3/4 - - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HnfiE 17 4/4 - - 1
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont HArks 0/1 1/4 - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong % 4 17 4/4 - 3/3 b
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho EREEF:S - 17 - - -
(resigned on 1 April 2012) (R=E5--FMA-ABE)
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul % 4 0N 3/4 - - 1*
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo BRELE 0/1 0/4 - - -
(resigned on 31 December 2012) (R=B-ZETZA=T-REH)
Independent Non-Executive BUEHTES
Directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnitt & 11 4/4 11 33 2/2
Mr. Chokchai Kotikula Chokchai Kotikula% % - N - 01 il
(resigned on 1 April 2012) (R=E-ZEMA-HEM)
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara%t & 11 3/3 - 2/2 1N
(appointed on 1 April 2012) (R=Z-“EMA-BEZE)
Mr. ltthaporn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong’t 4 - - - - -
(appointed on 31 December 2012) (R=B-Z5+-B=1-HEZH)
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech’%t - - - - -
(appointed on 31 December 2012) (R=B-ZE+-A=T-REZH)
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo PERtE 11 44 17 33 212
No. of meetings LELE 1 4 1 3 2
* attended on voluntary basis * ENEEi

HEREETDHEALLE - HHEBLAERHE
CREZRB - WIIHRBREEZNR - HE
REEDERIBEEZER - HEALE - H
HBEBEERWBBCEEDRAF2BER  BETD
HRRAEECZER - BRIBEETIHST AL
£ HESEERFBCEECERARIRR
TEZERR - BRRULKBEEN  HbESS
ﬁiéféﬁi&IJ%EEEJ%%MT%ZF&*E%%E@%E
EEAR -

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai Chearavanont.
He is an uncle of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
is the father-in-law of Mr. Michael Ross. Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai Chearavanont
are brothers. They are the cousins of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.
Mr. Michael Ross is the brother-in-law of Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai Chearavanont
and cousin-in-law of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Save as disclosed
above, there are no family relationships among members of the
Board and between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
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Continuous Professional Development

The individual training record of each director received for the
period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 is summarised

FREXRE

AAREWEBNESR-ZE-—-FHA—H
E-E-ZHFFTZA=T-HUEHEZEIR

below:- 7 HEIEWT - —
Attending seminar(s)
relevant to business
Reading or directors’ duties
Directors Materials and responsibilities
HEREEREERE
BEx MEER HEZHAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HWEALE v -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont MEMBLE v -
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed RIEEXE
(appointed on 1 April 2012) (R=E—Z-FWB—REZME) v -
Mr. Michael Ross ERIELE v -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BNEEE v -
Mr. Li Wen Hai ZEEEE v/ -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont WrErE v -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont WA EE v/ -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong %t 4 v/
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul5t 4 v/ -
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo MEELE
(resigned on 31 December 2012) (R=ZEB——F+ZA=1t—H#MH) v -
Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnit%t 4 v/ -
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t %
(appointed on 1 April 2012) (R=ZE——5WA—-—HEZMTF) v -
Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong ltthaporn Subhawong’t 4 Not Applicable Not Applicable
(appointed on 31 December 2012) (R=E—Z-FE+-A=+—-HEZM) TER TEA
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech%t 4 Not Applicable Not Applicable
(appointed on 31 December 2012) (RA=Z2—-E+ZB=+—HEZME) TER TEA
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BHMLE v v
Securities Transactions by Directors/Officers BEE SARBECESEXEEEH

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, they confirmed that they have fully complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code. Officers/
employees deemed to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive or confidential information in relation to the Company or
its shares are required to prohibit from dealing in securities of the
Company in accordance with written guidelines.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal

During the year, four directors were appointed by the Board and
four directors resigned. All newly appointed directors were briefed
by the Company’s lawyers about their duties and obligations as a
director of a listed company in Hong Kong.

The executive directors are not appointed for a specific term. The
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one
year, which is renewable. All the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at general meetings of
the Company, in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

Directors who are appointed by the Board must retire at the next
following general meeting/annual general meeting after their
appointments, but they are eligible for re-election at that general
meeting, and such election is separate from the normal retirement
of directors by rotation. According to the Articles, at least one-third
of the directors who have served the longest on the Board from last
re-election are required to retire by rotation at each annual general
meeting. The retiring directors are eligible for re-election at the
same annual general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Viroj
Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara with the purpose of monitoring
the integrity of the Group’s financial statements and provides
assurances to the Board that these comply with accounting
standards, stock exchange and legal requirements in relation to
financial reporting. The Audit Committee met twice in 2012 to review
work done by internal and external auditors, oversees financial
reporting system and internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee receives updates from Internal Audit and has dialogue
with senior management on their control responsibilities. Written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee is posted on the Stock
Exchange’s and Company’s websites.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Group’s external auditors, Messrs. KPMG is set out as follows:
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk
Wo (Chairman), Viroj Sangsnit and Songkitti Jaggabatara and
two executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont and Umroong Sanphasitvong. The main roles and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out by
the Board with clearly defined written terms of reference and
is posted on the Stock Exchange’s and Company’s websites.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the formulation
of the Group’s remuneration policies and for the approval of
remuneration packages for all directors except that its members
do not participate in the determination of their own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration
of executive directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, incentive
payment, share option, pension right and compensation payment
(including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment etc). The determination of the
Remuneration Committee was made in consultation with and
taking recommendations from the Chairman of the Board and other
advisers as appropriate and submitted for endorsement by the
Board. The Remuneration Committee met three times in 2012 to
discharge its duties. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out
in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive director of
the Company, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive directors of the Company, Messrs. Viroj
Sangsnit and Cheng Yuk Wo. The main roles and responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee include determining the nomination
policy, making recommendations to the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually, the appointment and
re-appointment of the directors and identify their suitabilities and
to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors. The Nomination Committee met once in 2012 to
discharge its duties, including identifying suitable candidates,
assessing their independency under the guidelines of the Listing
Rules and recommending to the Board on the appointment of the
independent non-executive directors. Written terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee is posted on the Stock Exchange’s and
Company’s websites.

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for managing business and operational
risks and maintaining a proper and effective system of internal
control to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition. The Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group has
adopted comprehensive procedures with duly assigned levels
of authority in areas of financial, operational controls, and risk
management to ensure that its assets and resources remain secure
at all times.

Annual Report 2012 44§

FHEES

FHNZEEERAR A= NBIHIITES
ERER AN £ &£ (£ FE) ~ Viroj Sangsnitit A& &
Songkitti Jaggabatarast &£ K AR B WAL 1T
EE | F AL EEUmroong Sanphasitvong
EEAN FTHNZEESTEBRECHESE
PRACHESETHINERIAREARAF
ZRIER - FNEESEEBTEAEE 2 5N
BERMEMBESZ2HMSFE  HERER
A2HEBTHEAZHM FTHESSETH
TEERSREBEAEZTFH BEFES
Mz BR -He 2B -RAL-KE BR
B ERERARBEESH (BERASAKL
BEIEEZEES) FHEES2REE
BARBRMNEEEIEREMERZER (A0
BR) TEREESEHE - FHMEEER
—E-—FRZASEUBTEHRE £33
M BEHN S REMEET -

REZEES

REZEGHART —UHITES  HEAL
A (EE)RADXTAMUBILIEHITES : Viroj
Sangsnit L £ BB AL EEK - IRREES
ZEIEREORE)BEETRBEER BE
EGoRBE - AERARREHESR ZAIRE
FZIEERERARScAEM  MFZBEL
FHTEE 2B I - RBZEENR=Z—=
FRIT-AGBUBTERSE  SEYEEE
AR R EHRAESIFFZEB LIS UHE
EBIFATEENESSRHESZ - BBZ
%‘:ZH’%HE%’EEﬁﬂﬁ(\‘ﬂ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ&$ﬁﬁ2é@
M o

WEEEE BREERVBRE

ExgdEREEBEEERR  YESSE
MAMzAMEZHE - UMERERRZKRER
FEECEERBEAERENALEE - BS
SCHARAREMBAR CAIMEERRZ
BHMETRN - AKECRAZEZER
YK EEERENARERERFTEE
RERE RRAKEAERAER -EFIR

P& o



Corporate Governance Report

The role of the Audit Committee is, through dialogue with
management, and the use of risk management and internal audit
functions to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
and to report to the Board any significant risks and issues.

Risk Management is responsible for analysing possible risks that
may affect the Group’s business operations; find measures to
eliminate, prevent and control risk. The Group has invested in
distribution centres and information technology systems such as
the store management system and the distribution centre system.
Information technology has played a major role in assisting the
Group to achieve higher efficiency in data storage and analysis.
Therefore, an error or problem in the information technology
systems will affect the Group’s ability to manage store operation
on a normal basis and may negatively affect the Group’s operating
performance.

The internal audit department is fully independent of business
operations. It has full and complete access to any of the Group’s
records, physical properties and personnel relevant to a review. The
authority of the department is defined by the Audit Committee and
reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to the Audit
Committee.

The objective of operation audit is to provide an independent
and objective evaluation of the quality and effectiveness of
store operations including internal controls established by the
management. Each store has to go through a monthly detailed
inspection of key operating activities such as cash movement,
goods receiving, claims and payments. Storewide physical counts
are carried out at least once a year. The operation audit department
reports to the Chief Financial Officer.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs. Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 72 and 73 of the Articles, general meetings can
be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the
Company deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists.
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Any extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by notice in writing of not less
than a period which is the longer of twenty-one days and ten clear
business days, and any other extraordinary general meeting shall
be called by notice in writing of not less than a period which is the
longer of fourteen days and ten clear business days. The notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed to
be served and of the day for which it is given, and shall specify
the place, the day and the hour of meeting and, in case of special
business (as defined in Article 75 of the Articles), particulars of
the resolutions to be considered at the meeting, and shall be
given in manner hereinafter mentioned or in such other manner, if
any, as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting to
such persons as are, under these Articles, entitled to receive such
notices from the Company provided that a meeting of the Company
notwithstanding that it is called by shorter notice than that specified
in this Article be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed
by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and
vote at the meeting, being a majority together holding not less than
ninety-five per cent in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board or any proposals
to be put forward at general meetings can be emailed to
contact@cplotuscorp.com or by mail to:

C.P. Lotus Corporation
21/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

Effective communication with shareholders and investors and the
provision of high standards of disclosure and financial transparency
have always been one of the Group’s priorities. A number of formal
communication channels are available to shareholders for the
performance of the Group including the annual and interim report
and the press release and announcements. Annual general meeting
and other general meetings provide a useful opportunity for the
Board to maintain a constructive dialogue with our shareholders.

The Group is committed to maintain continuing open dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts as a means of developing their
understanding of our strategy, operations, management and plans
and raising any issues they may have and provide the Group with
valuable feedbacks and insights.

The Company has its company website http://www.cplotuscorp.com

which provides additional channel for shareholders and interested
parties to access the Group’s information.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 48, has been an Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company since 2000. He was
re-designated as Chief Executive Officer & Executive Vice Chairman
of the Company with effect from 1 May 2008. His title of Executive
Vice Chairman was changed to Vice Chairman with effect from
1 September 2010. The title of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont has been
changed from Vice Chairman to Executive Chairman with effect from
1 January 2012. His title of Executive Chairman has been changed
to Chairman with effect from 1 April 2012. He was the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and has become
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 1 April 2012. He resigned as Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 1 August 2012. Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in the College
of Business and Public Administration of New York University,
USA and has extensive multinational investment and management
experience in various industries. He is an executive director and
Vice Chairman of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Soopakij Chearavanont is also a director of True Corporation Public
Company Limited and CP ALL Public Company Limited, which are
companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. He is also the
Chairman of True Visions Public Company Limited.

Mr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 47, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2001. He was re-designated as
Vice Chairman of the Company in September 2006. He obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from
New York University, USA, Certificate of Advance Management
Program in Transforming Proven Leaders into Global Executives
from Harvard Business School, Harvard University, USA and
an Honorary Doctorate degree of Business Administration from
Ramkamhaeng University, Thailand. Mr. Narong Chearavanont has
extensive experience in the retail and trading industries. He is a
director of True Corporation Public Company Limited and CP ALL
Public Company Limited, which are companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Thailand. Mr. Narong Chearavanont is also a director of
True Visions Cable Public Company Limited.

Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed, aged 50, has been an Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company since 1 April 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor degree from the University of Chicago,
USA and a Master degree from the Sloan School of Management,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA. Mr. Chan was a
Regional Director North Asia of the Diary Farm Group and a director
of Dairy Farm Management Services Limited from November 2001
to October 2006. He was the President and Chief Executive Officer
of Walmart China from October 2006 to October 2011. Mr. Chan is
currently a Vice Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group Company
Limited.

Mr. Michael Ross, aged 48, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as
Executive Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from 1 May
2008 and ceased to hold such position with effect from 1 September
2010. Mr. Ross has been re-designated as Vice Chairman of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2012. He obtained a Master
degree in Science from University of Salford, United Kingdom
and a Bachelor degree in Hospitality Management from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong. He has completed an
Executive Program at the Kennedy School of Government of
Harvard University in USA in 2009. He has extensive experience
in retail business. Since joining Lotus Supercenter in 1999, he had
served in major key positions in Business Development, Operations
and Merchandising. During this period, Mr. Ross had also served as
Regional President in Southern Region & Eastern Region of Lotus.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr. Yang Xiaoping, aged 48, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since April 2000. He was re-designated as Vice Chairman
of the Company with effect from 14 May 2007 and ceased to hold
such position with effect from 1 September 2010. Mr. Yang has
been re-designated as Vice Chairman of the Company with effect
from 1 January 2012. He has more than 20 years’ of extensive
experience in the international trading and investment in the
PRC and has good contact with central, provincial and municipal
governors.

Mr. Li Wen Hai, aged 55, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 18 April 2008. Mr.
Li obtained a Master degree in Business Administration from
Huazhong Normal University, PRC and is a senior economist. He
has extensive experience in retail business.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 54, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2005. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a Master
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont has extensive experience in investment,
finance, banking and strategic business development in Asia and
USA. He is currently a non-executive director of C.P. Pokphand Co.
Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He is currently also the Senior Executive
Assistant to the Chairman-Finance of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 46, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2000. He obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from Boston University
in USA, majoring in Financial Management. Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont has extensive experience in the telecommunication
and broadcasting industries. He is an executive director of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and a director, President
and Chief Executive Officer of True Corporation Public Company
Limited, which is a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Thailand. Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont is also a director and Chief
Executive Officer of True Visions Public Company Limited and True
Move Company Limited.

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong, aged 60, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in
December 2006. He obtained a Bachelor and a Master degree in
Accounting from Thammasat University, Thailand and has extensive
experience in financial management. Mr. Sanphasitvong is currently
a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited, CP ALL
Public Company Limited, which are companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Thailand, and of CPPC Public Company Limited. He is
also the Deputy Group Chief Financial Officer of Charoen Pokphand
Group Company Limited.

Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul, aged 59, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 1 September 2010. He obtained
a Bachelor Degree majoring in Marketing from Ramkhamhaeng
University, Thailand. He has extensive experience in marketing and
retail business. Mr. Titasattavorakul is the President of CP ALL
Public Company Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Thailand.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit, aged 77, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and a member of Audit Committee of
the Company since 1999. He is also a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He was appointed as a member of
Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from 1 April 2012.
Mr. Sangsnit was the Deputy Minister of Transport from 1991 to 1992
and the Deputy of Minister of Defense in 1996 in Thailand.

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara, aged 62, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company since
1 April 2012. He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the
Chulachomklao Royal Military Academy, Thailand and graduated
from National Defence College of Thailand. Mr. Jaggabatara has
served in the Royal Thai Armed Forces for 39 years and has been
appointed as Chief of Defence Forces of the Royal Thai Armed
Forces effective 1 October 2008. He retired from the Royal Thai
Armed Forces on 30 September 2011. Mr. Jaggabatara is currently
an advisor to Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong, aged 61, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He graduated from National Defence College of Thailand. Mr.
Subhawong has served in the Royal Thai Air Force (“RTAF”) for 37
years and was appointed as Air Chief Marshal of the RTAF in 2007.
He was appointed the 21st Commander-in-Chief of the RTAF on 1
October 2008. Mr. Subhawong retired from Commander-in-Chief of
the RTAF on 30 September 2012.

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech, aged 67, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the (gompany since 31 December 2012.
He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from Thammasat University,
Thailand. Mr. Boondech was admitted as Barrister-at-Law, Institute
of Legal Education, Thai Bar Association, Thailand in 1967 and
Barrister-at-Law, Lincoln’s Inn, England in 1972. He has extensive
experience in the legal field and is a lecturer on Family Law, Faculty
of Law, Chulalongkorn University and Institute of Legal Education,
Thai Bar Association, Thailand. Mr. Boondech was the President of
the Senate of Thailand from 2008 to 2011.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company since 2004. He was a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and he was appointed
as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company
with effect from 1 April 2012. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of
Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and Finance
from London School of Economics, England and a Bachelor of
Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from University of Kent,
England. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’ of
expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an executive director of 21 Holdings Limited
and an independent non-executive director of CSI Properties
Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited,
Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Imagi
International Holdings Limited and Top Spring International Holdings
Limited, the abovementioned companies are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and of South
China Land Limited, which is listed on the GEM Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Report of the Directors
EEHRES

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Through its
subsidiaries, the Company is principally engaged in the operation of
large scale one-stop shopping centers, Lotus Supercenters located
in the northern, southern and eastern parts of China.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 43 of the financial statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year (2011: Nil).

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximately RMB281,369,000
on additions of fixed assets mainly for opening of new stores and
the store renovation.

Details of movements in the fixed assets during the year are set out
in note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

On 1 January 2012, 2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference
shares of par value of HK$0.02 each were issued as consideration
for the acquisition of subsidiaries.

On 29 May 2012, 610,800,660 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.02 each were issued at a price of HK$0.0687 per share as a
result of the exercise of all the outstanding share options granted
on 6 June 2002. Net proceeds from the shares issued amounted to
HK$41,962,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 1,276,000 ordinary
shares were issued in connection with the conversion of same
number of Series C convertible preference shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
distributions shall be payable out of the profits of the Company.
Accordingly, the Company has distributable reserves of
HK$983,037,000 (equivalent to RMB902,739,000) as at 31
December 2012 (2011: HK$1,032,956,000 (equivalent to
RMB943,352,000)).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save for certain transactions disclosed in the section entitled
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, none of
the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) of the Company has any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Narong Chearavanont
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed
Mr. Michael Ross

Mr. Yang Xiaoping

Mr. Li Wen Hai

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo

(resigned on 1 April 2012)

(appointed on 1 April 2012)

(resigned on 1 April 2012)

(resigned on 31 December 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Chokchai Kotikula

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara
Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong

Mr. Prasobsook Boondech
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

resigned on 1 April 2012)
appointed on 1 April 2012)
appointed on 31 December 2012)
appointed on 31 December 2012)

_— e~ o~ —~

In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs. Michael Ross, Yang Xiaoping, Meth
Jiaravanont, Suphachai Chearavanont, Piyawat Titasattavorakul,
Itthaporn Subhawong and Prasobsook Boondech, will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM?”). Details of the
directors proposed to be re-elected at the AGM have been set out
in the relevant circular to be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company.
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Viroj Sangsnitt 4
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Songkitti Jaggabatara £ (R=F—-—EMB-AEZA)
Itthaporn Subhawong’t 4 (RZE-ZF+ZF=1-BEZf)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (Continued)

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a term of one year, which is renewable and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, the directors were not aware that any
of the directors has interest in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR

DEBENTURES (Continued)
U]

Long positions in shares/underlying shares of the Company

(i)

Report of the Directors
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EENBETTHRAERR®S - 8
ERODESETFER 2ERR

x = (&)

RARRFRZRE,HEER G

Number of
shares/underlying

Approximate
percentage of

Name of directors Notes shares held shareholding

BrEZR®G BRE
EEEB Mt 5E HERODHE BMABML
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont HEALE (1) 183,240,198 1.87%
Mr. Narong Chearavanont s AL (1) 183,240,198 1.87%
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BhEEE (1) 183,240,198 1.87%
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont R EE 2) 61,080,066 0.62%
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont  ##8{- %4 (1) 183,240,198 1.87%
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong 4t & (1) 183,240,198 1.87%
Notes: Ff 5E

(1) It represents 61,080,066 issu

ed shares and 122,160,132

underlying shares in respect of the share options granted by the
Company, details of which are stated under the section headed

“Share Option Schemes” below.

It represents 61,080,066 underlyin
options granted by the Compan

g shares in respect of the share
y, details of which are stated

under the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below.

(i)

Director’s interests in shares of associated corporations

(i)

1t 7561,080,0668% & & 17 B% 17 &2 122,160,132
BEBRAQAARLEREZEBRY > F1EH
FIA T IR AEST & —&F -

1t 7561,080,066 % 4 B4 245 2 7] #% 1 B8 IR # .2 4R
ARG  FEREEIIN T B B -

EERNMEEEEzROES

Approximate

Name of directors Name of associated Number of percentage of
corporation shares held shareholding
BRE
EEXEB HEEE S8 BEZROHE BHBE MG
Mr. Yang Xiaoping Kinghill Limited 142,857 0.05%
BNERE
Mr. Li Wen Hai Kinghill Limited 142,857 0.05%
THEBEE
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Charoen Pokphand Foods Public 1,400,000 0.02%
Umroong Sanphasitvong 3t &£ Company Limited
hNERBEERRLT (KR)
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Charoen Pokphand Foods Public 700,000 0.01%

Piyawat Titasattavorakul %t &

Save as disclosed above, as at 31
directors and chief executive of th
or short positions in shares, underl

Company Limited
hNERBEERRDR (KR)

December 2012, none of the
e Company had any interest
ying shares or debentures of

the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 352

of the SFO or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

the Model Code.

BRUEREBEEN  RZFE-—Z-F1+ R
=t—HB BERRACESRSRITH
AERAR T E[EEEE (E&ERE
M) BB RIS E SR G B 352 R E 5
AXRB BT SREFEESE
BRECBAARRBRBERPNZKRM - 1858
BRORESFPHEA2EBERAR -
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PERSONS WHO HAVE AN INTEREST
OR SHORT POSITIONS WHICH IS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of SFO shows
that the following shareholders had notified the Company of the
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

BRERSRIREEATRERESR
BEIAXBEZATREERR

M=

E-—ZFE+ZA=1+—H ' A2FRE

B HIRGIE3BIEMIFE 2 EERREMATE

N~

THRREBHAADREBERENRADF

ERITRADHERS 2 HEES

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders Notes shares held shareholding
BHREMD
REREHE M 3£ BERGEE Bok
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment (1) 18,083,521,003 184.60%
Company Limited (“CPH”) Company Limited ([ CPH )
Worth Access Trading Limited Worth Access Trading Limited (1) 18,083,521,003 184.60%
(“Worth Access”) (T'Worth Access )
CPG Overseas Company Limited CPG Overseas Company Limited (1) 18,083,521,003 184.60%
(“CPG Overseas”) (TCPG Overseas |)
Charoen Pokphand Group Charoen Pokphand Group (1) 18,083,521,003 184.60%
Company Limited (“CPG”) Company Limited ([CPG])
Bangkok Bank Public BRRITEEDIT 2 18,083,521,003 184.60%
Company Limited, (MEARRITD
Hong Kong Branch (“BBL”)
Krung Thai Bank Public Krung Thai Bank Public @) 18,083,521,003 184.60%
Company Limited (“KTB”) Company Limited ([KTBJ)
The Siam Commercial Bank The Siam Commercial Bank 2) 18,083,521,003 184.60%
Public Company Limited, Public Company Limited,
Hong Kong Branch (“SCB”) EE217(SCBJ)
Thanachart Bank Public Thanachart Bank Public 2) 18,083,521,003 184.60%
Company Limited (“TBL”) Company Limited ([TBLJ)
Thanachart Capital Public Thanachart Capital Public 2) 18,083,521,003 184.60%
Limited Company (“TCL”) Limited Company ([ TCL]J)
Notes: MizE :

M

Worth Access had declared an interest in the same 18,083,521,003

shares in which CPH had declared an interest by virtue of Worth
Access’ shareholding in CPH. CPG Overseas had declared an interest
in the same 18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding
in Worth Access. CPG had declared an interest in the same
18,083,521,003 shares by virtue of its shareholding in CPG Overseas.

BBL, KTB, SCB and TBL (the “Banks”) had declared an interest in the

same 18,083,521,003 shares in which CPH had declared an interest as
CPH had entered into an agreement with the Banks under section 317
of the SFO. TCL had declared an interest in the same 18,083,521,003
shares in which TBL had declared an interest by virtue of TCL’s

shareholding in TBL.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

i
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i

The share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the ZAATZRRA-ESE_FHEA=+—HEHR
Company on 31 May 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) expired on 30 May ZBER#ETE((EE ) EeR==E—=5HH
2012. The shareholders of the Company approved the termination =+HZH - KATZRECREAQXTR-Z
of the Old Scheme and the adoption of a new share option scheme ——&XA-+-HZRFBAEAS LBEBR
(the “New Scheme”) in place of the Old Scheme at the annual IFEFTEIREMETBIRESTE ([#HsHE]) LUE
general meeting of the Company on 22 June 2012. Upon the REFE - EEETEIR L  BEBRERIZ
termination of the Old Scheme, no further options would be granted E:t2E—FFH - A > ETE 2B AR
under the Old Scheme. However, the rules of the Old Scheme would Z2EEN ' UBKRAESHRKRILAER ZFM
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect MEREZITEAN > REMFTESH BB ES
to the exercise of any option granted prior to its termination, or ZE|ZiRAIEM - FIERBEFTSI THREL LA
otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance with the FHBERESEBETIZRINEEENR
rules of the Old Scheme. All options granted under the Old Scheme A {T{F o
prior to its termination would continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the rules of the Old Scheme.
Pursuant to the Old Scheme, the Company had on 6 June 2002, 10 REBETE KXATKR=-ZZZE=_FxAXH
November 2003 and 24 May 2005 granted to certain grantees the Z—ZEE=F+—-H+HRKZ=-ZZZERFHA
rights to subscribe for ordinary shares in the capital of the Company Z—+ AR FEFEEBADIUESRTEE
at exercise prices of HK$0.07, HK$0.19 and HK$0.11 per share 0.073& 7t~ 0.1958 T X 0. 1138 TR B AR A 7 1%
respectively. Under the rules of the Old Scheme, adjustments to AAZEIRZER - RIBETEI 2B » K17
the exercise price and number of outstanding share options were FEREZITEERHER L ABHEXETKER
made from the date of completion of the open offer on 23 December (—ZZE——&+_-_H=-+=H)@BELHFAE - 1T
2011. The exercise prices were adjusted to HK$0.0687, HK$0.1865 {F{E5 BIFHE ASR0.06878 T » 0.1865% T
and HK$0.1080 per share respectively. On 29 May 2012, the shares  %0.1080/B7T c R—E——FFRA=-+HhA -
options granted on 6 June 2002 were fully exercised at the exercise R_-_EBEE_F B ANASHZERENUTE
price of HK$0.0687 and the weighted average closing price of the {E0.0687 & TERHTERAA T 2 EZBBRE
ordinary shares of the Company immediately before the date of EEBEBRETERHZAIMNMNELESKTES
exercising the share options was HK$0.2678. 0.2678%& JT °
As at 31 December 2012, there were 1,221,601,320 outstanding RZ-ZE——-—F+=-A=+—H  RBEETET
options to subscribe for a total of 1,221,601,320 ordinary shares, 77 T2 H1,221,601,3200 &R 1TE 2B
of which no options to subscribe for ordinary shares have been JRIELIFE S £1,221,601,3200 ZEBR &
exercised, lapsed, and cancelled under the Old Scheme and no HHIEAZEEERCBEBRESTE A¥K
options were granted under the New Scheme. HENEBEENETHER LEIRRE -
Details of the movements in share options under the Old Scheme RER  REEFEI2EBRESSHFEEHIW
during the year are as follows: T
Number of share options
BREHAE
Adjusted Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Asat 31
exercise Asat1 during during during during December
Category of participant Date of grant Exercisable period gyice January 2012 the year the year the year the year 2012
) ELS RoE-ZF EER 5ER EER FEm RZ3-Zf
SEAAR RuAH SR hﬁ% -f-H R it i X% tZR=t-H
AT
(i) Directors
EE
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.0687 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
HEARE 5 June 2012
ZZECERARA ZEECERARAE
“EZ-"ExAIA
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.1865 61,080,066 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013
ZEEZET-BTR ZETZEL-AtRE
ZE-ZE+-AnA
24 May 2005 242l\ga 20%% 1tg 0.1080 61,080,066 - - - - 61,080,066
d
CETRERACTMA  CEERERACTMAZ
“E-BEIA-TER
Mr. Narong Chearavanont 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.0687 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
ﬁ%%ﬁé 5 June 2012
ZZECERARA ZEECERARAE
ZE-CERBEA
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.1865 61,080,066 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013
TZEZET-BTR ZETZEL-AtRE
TE-ZET-ANA
24 May 2005 24 MHK/IQOOS to 0.1080 61,080,066 - - - - 61,080,066
23 May 2015
“$REEEACIMA  CEREIEEA-INAE
ZE-RERRCTZA
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BRRERTE (E)
Number of share options
EREHE
Adjusted Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at 31
exercise Asat1 during during during during December
Category of participant Date of grant Exercisable period grlce January 2012 the year the year the year the year 2012
. B Ho%-zf £ER FEA EER EEm R-%-ZF
SEAEH RinH fRER $ -B-8 R fife i x4 + ﬂ +
HK
7
(i) Directgrs (Continued)
E2(8)
Mr. Yang Xiaoping 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.0687 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
BIERE 5 June 2012
—77 E/\ﬂ/\ﬁ —77 E/\ﬁ/\ﬁ;t
ZE-CERBRA
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.1865 61,080,066 - - - - 61,080,086
9 November 2013
ZEEZES-ATE CRRZE{-AtAE
Z§-ZFt-BAE
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1080 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,066
23 May 2015
ZZERERFITMR CESRERACTRAZ
ZE-1ERAC4EE
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1080 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,066
Hnhis 23 May 2015
ZZERERFITME CESRERACTMAZ
“3-BERACTER
Mr, Suphachai Chearavanont 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.0687 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
Balrs 5 June 2012
SEESERRAR CBEICEARARE
“§-EnREA
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.1865 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013
ZEEZET-ATH ZEEZET-BTHE
“E-ZET-AAR
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1080 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,066
23 May 2015
ZZERERFITME CESRERACTRAZ
ZE-1ERACTEH
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvon 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.0687 61,080,066 - 61,080,066 - - -
Umroong Sanphasitvong% 5 June 2012
ZZECERARA ZZECERARRE
ZE-ZE5RARA
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.1865 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013
ZEEZET-A1H ZEEZET-BTHE
“E-ZET-AAA
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1080 61,080,086 - - - - 61,080,066
23 May 2015
ZZERERFITME CESRERACTRAZ
ZE-1FRACTEH
(ii) Other participants 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.0687 305,400,330 - 305,400,330 - - -
in aggregate 5 June 2012
% HAZHE ZEECENERE 7 EZERAANAE
- 7 —i/\ﬁ ﬁ E
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.1865 305,400,330 - - - - 305,400,330
9 November 2013
CERIET-ATE CEEZET-ATHE
ZR-ZET-ANA
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1080 244,320,264 - - - - 244320064
23 May 2015
ZZERERAITME CESRERACTRAZ
ZE-1FRACTEH
Note: Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho as Mzt : BREMEELEER-_ZT—_FMA8— BT

director of the Company on 1 April 2012, his share options were

included in “Other participants in aggregate” in the above table.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a group of banks in Thailand
pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions of which, the
Company was granted a term loan facility of US$28.0 million, the
principal outstanding amount of which is required to be repaid by
12 installments commencing in June 2013 up to and until December
2018.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default
thereunder if the controlling shareholder of the Company, CPH fails
to legally and beneficially own (directly or indirectly) at least 51% of
the total issued and paid up ordinary shares in the Company. As at
the date of this report, CPH is interested in approximately 69.29%
of the total ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the capital of the
Company in issue.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement
to become immediately due and payable.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont was a Vice Chairman of the Company.
His title of Vice Chairman has changed to Executive Chairman with
effect from 1 January 2012 and his title of Executive Chairman has
changed to Chairman with effect from 1 April 2012. Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont has ceased to be the Chairman and has become a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company with effect
from 1 April 2012 and he has been appointed as the Chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company on the same day. Mr.
Soopakij Chearavanont has resigned as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company with effect from 1 August 2012.

Messrs. Michael Ross and Yang Xiaoping have been re-designated
as Vice Chairmen of the Company with effect from 1 January 2012.

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit has been appointed as a member of the
nomination committee of the Company with effect from 1 April 2012.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo has been appointed as the Chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company with effect from 1 April 2012.
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RZB——F+—A=Z+hBH ARATHEZH
BRET LS ((mEHED  REBEEKERR
&4 AR EEREHE K EE 28,000,000
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EZE-N\F+ZHIE T+ ZHEE -

RIBEEN R - A DQ R ZZERBRRCPHAREE
BENEBZER (EERBEE) AQAE BT
EHREBRABZHIE1%  BBHENS
Ho AARER  CPHEBAALQBARAHE #
TER0.02B TEBREEN69.29% °

MEE FMENEIR  BEHARRARBER
BAT ZIBEAEEGERDFRPILFEE -

B LEHHRAE13.51B(1)E F
REE

HEALLEBARRAZBEIESR - HEIES
ReBHR-_Z2—_F-F-HA2BFRESK
REESRCZBAR-ZF-_FHNA-—HEE
BREFE -R-ZZF-—_FHNA-B #HZTARE
TBREEAQRAFMEES 2 ETFINBEN
ERNEBEEZERAARBAREEZEESZE
FoHBALTER-ZE-ZFNA-HBREL
RABRITRZBEH -

BRIBERERBPNFEER-ZZE-—ZF—-A—
AAEAARRAZEIESR -

Viroj Sangsnit t ER—ZE——_F WA —HEZ
EREQATREEZEEEZHE °

BHNEENR-_ZE-—_FHNA-REZERE

NAFNEEECEERALAREEEEZ
& °
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Purchase and Supply Agreements

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into the OSIL-CCT
Purchase Agreement with Orient Success International Limited
(“OSIL”) to purchase certain merchandise from OSIL and OSIL
Related Entities for the term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013.

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into the 2010 CPH
Supply Agreement with CPH under which any subsidiaries of the
Company would supply certain merchandise to CPH and certain
CPH Related Entities for the term from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013.

Leases and Sub-leases

On 19 October 2010, Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store
Co., Ltd. (“SLS”) and Shanghai Kinghill Ltd. (L% REREBRA
Fl) (“Shanghai Kinghill”) entered into the 2010 Super Brand Mall
Lease in relation to a portion of the Super Brand Mall situated at
No. 168 Lujiazui Xi Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC,
with a total floor area of approximately 13,500 square meters for the
monthly rental of RMB1,500,000, equivalent to an annual rental of
RMB18,000,000 for the term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013.

On 20 January 2012, SLS and Chia Tai Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (EAEXE#EEEBRAF) (“CTCREM”)
(on behalf of itself and its wholly-owned subsidiary, E&IEKXK4E
SEBEEEMR2DT (“Shanghai ZDSH”)) entered into the 2012 SLS
Sub-Lease, for the term from 1 January 2012 to 31 December
2012, for a monthly rental of RMB1,364,000 from 1 January 2012 to
30 April 2012 and RMB1,389,000 from 1 May 2012 to 31 December
2012, equivalent to an annual rental of RMB16,568,000, plus (i)
a commission of 5% on the excess of subletting rental income
received by CTCREM and/or Shanghai ZDSH over the rental
receivable by SLS under the 2012 SLS Sub-Lease; (ii) a commission
of 15% on the advertising and promotion income received by
Shanghai ZDSH derived from the property located at Level 1,
No. 541 Tian Shan Xi Lu, Chang Ning District, Shanghai, the
PRC, with an area of approximately 8,600 square meters; and (iii)
a commission of 15% on the advertising and promotion income
received by CTCREM derived from the property located at No. 2128
Yang Gao Zhong Lu, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC, with
an area of approximately 6,527 square meters.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Services Agreements

On 25 March 2010, the Company renewed the Procurement
Services Agreement with CPH. Pursuant to the Procurement
Services Agreement, the Company can by itself or procure other
member(s) of the CP Lotus Group to perform certain purchasing
functions for the CPH Group in relation to products sold by the CPH
Non-performing Stores for a term commencing from 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2012.

On 20 January 2012, the Company entered into the 2012 CP Lotus
Consulting Agreement with CTCREM in relation to the provision of
consultancy services by CTCREM to 20 stores operated by SLS,
2 stores operated by Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co.,
Ltd. and 1 store operated by Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain
Store Co., Ltd., from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012, and
1 store operated by Xuzhou branch of Wuxi Ailian Supermarket
Chain Store Co., Ltd., from 1 January 2012 to 30 September 2012,
in Eastern China and Northern China, with a monthly service fee of
no more than RMB713,000.

Details of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcements dated 25 March 2010, 19 October
2010, 14 October 2011 and 20 January 2012 and circulars dated
4 November 2010 and 1 November 2011.

The Chearavanont Shareholders, through CPG, a company in which
they have a combined 51.31% shareholding interest, are interested
in approximately 69.29% in aggregate of the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue, and are therefore collectively the controlling
shareholders of the Company. As the Chearavanont Shareholders
and their associates, on an aggregate basis, are collectively also
the controlling shareholders of Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and
OSIL, Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and OSIL are associates of and
connected persons of the Company for the purposes of the Listing
Rules. Since CPH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, CPH is a
connected person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules.

The transactions contemplated under each of the renewed
Procurement Services Agreement, the 2010 Super Brand Mall
Lease, the 2012 SLS Sub-Lease and the 2012 CP Lotus Consulting
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions exempt
from independent shareholders’ approval but were subject to
reporting and announcement requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the OSIL-CCT Purchase
Agreement and the 2010 CPH Supply Agreement constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company within
the meaning of the Listing Rules and they were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 29 November 2010
and 23 November 2011.
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Report of the Directors
EEHRES

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The actual transactions and approved annual caps for the
abovementioned continuing connected transaction agreements
during the year from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012 are as
follows:

FEREXS (&)

LS EFAER S HEN _—FT——F—A—H
EZE-HFFZA=ZT-HZEBRXZHE
MEEEELRNOT :

Actual Approved
Transactions Annual Caps
EHEFEE
BEBXRS HEFR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBT T
Non-exempt continuing connected TESEIFBEBEEIZ HE -
transaction agreements:
OSIL-CCT Purchase Agreement OSILBHEBERZRERS 278,252 327,600
2010 CPH Supply Agreement —E-FFECPHItERE 670,217 977,500
Exempt continuing connected EHRIFEEEX G i -
transaction agreements:
2010 Super Brand Mall Lease —E-EFTXRESHERR 18,000 18,000
2012 SLS Sub-Lease TE-CHFELBERSEBE 18,060 18,200
Procurement Services Agreement REBIRGEH = - 5,109
2012 CP Lotus Consulting Agreement “E-—FEMNEEEBHE 4,890 6,400

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements (HKSAE) 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have

reviewed the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into:

(@)
(b)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

on normal commercial terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes”
above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-
executive directors of the Company. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed internal control and financial
reporting matters, including the review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Messrs. KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Soopakij Chearavanont
Director

Hong Kong, 22 February 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERES

Independent auditor’s report to the

shareholders of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Lotus Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 43 to 113, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2012, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 February 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZTHEHBRARR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BEZZ--F+-A=+-HLEFEUARBTHREMN)

2012 2011
—_E—_=F —_ZTE——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
M = AR TR AR T
Turnover = 3 10,677,425 10,019,305
Cost of sales $HE R 17 (8,914,309) (8,243,734)
Gross profit EF 1,763,116 1,775,571
Other revenue H fth Uy 25 4 463,823 377,557
Other net (loss)/income Hith (B518) WA S5 4 (35,783) 17,162
Distribution and store operating costs s R | & E R A (1,999,421) (1,657,151)
Administrative expenses THEHA (427,334) (328,766)
(Loss)/profit from operations K (F|E) B F (235,599) 184,373
Finance costs & B AN 5(a) (88,895) (149,687)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BR¥LAT (B518) R F 5 (324,494) 34,686
Income tax g st 6 (67,145) (10,926)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB EFH (391,639) 23,760
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EKA
for the year (after tax and (RBERESERAER)
reclassification adjustments)
Exchange differences on translation MEREARLFM
of financial statements of entities (TR ED) BASh R B B 75
outside the People’s RECZERER
Republic of China (“PRC”) (1,222) 37,062
Cash flow hedge: RERE P :
- Effective portion of changes in —AREZE 2B UM
fair value - 3,391
- Reclassified to profit or loss —-BEo BB 5(a) - 3,343
(1,222) 43,796
Total comprehensive income FEZHKRALE
for the year (392,861) 67,556
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: LTALTELEE
(&8) aFl -
Equity shareholders of the Company PN (391,530) 23,813
Non-controlling interests IR RS (109) (53)
(391,639) 23,760
Total comprehensive income for DTATEGFEZEA
the year attributable to: WA
Equity shareholders of the Company VNN (392,752) 67,609
Non-controlling interests R ER (109) (53)
(392,861) 67,556
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (BR) EF 11
Basic (RMB cents) EXR(AR%E D) (1.88) 0.16
Diluted (RMB cents) #E(AR%YD) (1.88) 0.15

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E U BRR | R

At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
= —: —E——
t=ZA=t-— +T=ZA=+—H
Note RMPB’ 000 RMB’ 000
By = ARETR ARB TR
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets BlE&E . 12
- Property, plant and equipment -NE - -BERRE 1,682,541 1,530,810
- Interests in leasehold land held for -—EEHE AL
own use under operating leases HEER 154,240 160,533
| 1,836,781 1,691,343
Intangible assets BEEE 13 219,180 201,082
Goodwill mE 14 3,154,278 2,719,785
Prepaid lease payments for premises BAYERSE 16 35,674 6,000
Other long-term prepayments HiRHMEANER 9,987 7,342
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE 27(b) 65,112 113,717
e B321,012 4,739,269
Current assets RBEE
Prepaid lease payments for premises BEAMEREE 16 8,944 11,145
Inventories 78 17 908,635 1,177,056
Trade and other receivables SERHMERE 18 847,944 580,257
Pledged bank deposits EIRFRITER 19 214,831 143,179
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHEER 20 415,974 242,380
‘ \ 2,396,328 2,154,017
Assets classified as held for sale PEAGHEEE 21 - 15,927
. 2,396,328 | 2,169,944
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables =38 R H At FE T 51 22 3,935,625 3,775,680
Bank loans RITEN 23 1,258,192 74,953
Other loans Hi &% 24 152,100 117,093
Obligations under finance leases MEHSEE 25 6,677 6,052
Current taxation NEA%E 18 27(a) 17,214 18,899
Provisions B 26 56,331 267
e iiiiioo.....)]......9426,139 | 3,992,944
Net current liabilites RBEEER | (3,029,811) | (1,823,000)
Total assets less current liabilities REERABA® | 2291201 | 2,916,269
Non-current liabilities knBEE
Bank loans RITE M 23 - 687,441
Obligations under finance leases RMEHESE 25 180,430 187,107
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE 27(b) 38,031 39,236
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 218461 | 913784
NET ASSETS BEERH 2,072,740 2,002,485
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRREE
Share capital (SN 28(a) 386,424 340,614
Reserves EXE] 1,684,478 1,659,924
Total equity attributable to equity AATRRELEER
shareholders of the Company 2,070,902 2,000,538
Non-controlling interests IR ER 1,838 1,947
TOTAL EQUITY BB 2,072,740 2,002,485
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R-E—=F-_F=-+_-_HEEESHERE
22 February 20183. REF 22 o

Soopakij Chearavanont Umroong Sanphasitvong
@ E A

Dig—:::clztor Difector
EE =

FASENBE ZME I AN B |RE 2 87 -

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

N
B % AR R ] &
At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
RZEBE-—ZF+ZA=+—H(UAR¥ETREN)

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
—F-=F —E2——-F
+=ZA=+—-H | +t=B=+-—-H
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B & ARETT ARET T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 12 1,277 306
Interests in subsidiaries IEENGE £ 15 3,430,921 3,001,735
Other long-term prepayments HitRHENLER 2,531 3,286
3,434,729 3,005,327

Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 2B R e A 18 10,436 16,365
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEE 20 30,511 17,159
40,947 33,524
Current liabilities hREAE

Trade and other payables EERHAMESTRE 22 403,445 388,318
Bank loans RITEX 23 177,086 =
Other loans HitbEFX 24 15,740 17,008
596,271 405,326
Net current liabilities REEEFE (555,324) (371,802)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABEE 2,879,405 2,633,525

Non-current liabilities F¥REBEE
Bank loans RITER 23 - 177,057
= 177,057
NET ASSETS EEZE 2,879,405 2,456,468

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRR#E
Share capital &N 28(a) 386,424 340,614
Reserves e 29(a) 2,492,981 2,115,854
TOTAL EQUITY X 2,879,405 2,456,468

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
22 February 2013.

Soopakij Chearavanont
#EA
Director

EF

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERSHHE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BE_Z-—_F+-A=+-HLEFEWUARBITREN

KRARREE
Retained
Share earnings/ Non-
Share Share Revaluation option Exchange Hedging (Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests Total
RERA/
& Riag EfiRE BRERE EiRE bafil-1 | (2itER) 85 FERES 85
(note 28) (note 29(c) (note 29(c)) (note 29(c) (note 29(c) (note 29(c)
(Kizkos) (Kiskoa() (Kizk29(0) (Kik9(c) (Kiskoa(0) (Kskoa(0)
RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABETR AEETT ABETR ARETT AEETT ABETR ARETT A& AB®TR ABETR
At 1 January 2011 R-E--£-5-A 280,585 AR (9,166) 53,841 196,511 (6,734) 18,731 1,215,198 2,000 1,217,198
Proftfor the year EERH - - - - - - 2813 28813 (53) 2,760
Other comprehensive UETTON

income - - - - 37,062 6,734 - 43,79 - 43,79
Total comprehensive EEREUAEE

income for the year - - - - 37,062 6,734 23813 67,609 (53) 67,556
Issue of Series C convertible  E{TCAFITER

preference shares BR (Kios(a)

(note 28(a)) 60,029 597,702 - - - - - 657,731 - 657,731
At 31 December 2011 NE--E+Zh=1-H 340,614 1,339,182 (9,166) 53,841 233,573 - 544 2,000,538 1947 2,002,485
At 1 January 2012 W-%-2F-5-A 340,614 1,339,132 (9,166) 53,841 233,573 - 4,544 2,000,538 1947 2,002,485
Loss for the year 3 | 7 - - - - - (391,530) (391,530) (109 (391,639)
Other comprehensive LR TN

income - . L Y 122 - . 122 - (122
Total comprehensive EREENALE

income forte year . - : . 12 ’ (3915 975 {10y (392861
Issue of Series D convertible ~ E{TDAHTEK

preference shares BR (Kios(a)

(note 28(a)) 35,855 393,065 - - - - - 428,920 - 428,920
Sharesissed ponevercise  BTREREMR T2 Rf

of share options (Ki&Eos(a)

(1ote 280 9955 24201 - . - - - 34,196 - 3,196
At 31 December 2012 WZB-ZE+Zh=1-H 386,424 1,756,438 (9,166) 53,841 232,351 - (348,986) 2,070902 1,838 2,072,740

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEREREHRK

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE_Z--S+-A=+-HLEFE(UARBTREN)

2012 2011
—E—— —E——
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
fi et ARBT R ARBT
Operating activities HEER
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRE A0 (BB) & (324,494) 34,686
Adjustments for: BUTHE:
Finance costs Al & R 5(a) 88,895 149,687
Interest income AMEWA 4 (8,494) (5,686)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEEZEE 4 20,301 4,223
Depreciation of property, ME - BERREZ
plant and equipment ne 5(c) 191,236 181,753
Impairment loss on property, ME - BERSZEZ
plant and equipment REEE 12(a) 634 -
Amortisation of land lease premium TSR 2 5(c) 6,293 6,294
Amortisation of intangible assets BEEEZHH 5(c) 13,152 10,713
Foreign exchange gain HNEETE T A (3,572) (23,830)
Operating (loss)/profit before changes EELESRHHIEE
in working capital (E18) a7l (16,049) 357,840
Increase in prepaid lease EAMEREEEM
payments for premises (27,473) (4,472)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEREL /(M) 333,034 (352,605)
Increase in bank deposits pledged for inventory EEATHEEFERERZ
purchases and guarantees to landlords ERZBITERIEM ‘ (71,652) (47,118)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables & & & E b FE U F0 08 (3 ) /R4 (164,244) 110,053
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables EERHEMEMNTERD) /Em (55,720) 455,019
Cash (used in)/generated from operations BE(fEA) /EE2RS (2,104) 518,717
PRC tax paid ENHERE 27(a) (24,697) (18,279)
Net cash (used in)/generated EEEK (ER) BEE2
__from operating activities RER® | legon] 500,438
Investing activities REXH
Payment for purchases of fixed assets BEEESEZAX (281,369) (208,962)
Net cash acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries e B BT B A EJFJTHZiEé@ﬁE 2 21,163 -
Interest received 2 A 2 8,494 5,686
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEZR 3,174 3,680
Net cash used in investing activities ?i_%_‘%?%@_ﬂiz_*_ﬁ?}?iiiﬁ_ __________________________ (248538)| (199,596)
Financing activities il & 2
Proceeds from bank loans RITERZR 1,084,023 191,057
Repayment of bank loans ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁz%%ﬁ (585,814) (925,970)
Proceeds from other loans HtEHR 278 420,000 465,000
Repayment of other loans Hith B ZEM (385,000) (587,713)
Capital element of finance leases paid IARMERE 2 RS TH (6,052) (5,150)
Interest element of finance leases paid TARERE 2 FEHH (18,806) (19,359)
Interest on bank loans RITERZAE (50,065) (86,474)
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees paid INERRERERER (32,700) (24,569)
Interest on other loans HMERZFE (10,798) (11,397)
Net proceeds from issue of convertible BOURRELERZ
preference shares FIEFaE y 28(a) - 657,731
Net proceeds from exercise of share options TEBREZEFHE 28(a) 34,196 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMELBEE/ (FRH)
_financing activities ZREF® | 448984 | (346,844)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BReERBASEHEEM/ (R
cash equivalents k] 173,645 (46,002)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HeEREZ 2L (51) (40)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—-BzBRERBEEH 242,380 288,422
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December Rt+ZRA=+—-HzHE
RAEEE 20 415,974 242,380

The notes on pages 48 to 113 form part of these financial statements.

Annual Report 2012 44§

BASENBE Z M I AR B R E 2 87 -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 15 ¥ & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHEE

(a) Statement of compliance (a) EHEH
These financial statements have been prepared in A BBRECHRESBSTMAE
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial (TEBSEAS]) IEMGZER
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term BARBBEREEL ([FB KR
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial £X8 ) G BEEMEER 2@
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards BB B IERELED - HAEGFTER
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong (BREE]) RRE BEEE
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), DNREFRAUREB QA 2K E
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong REMGRER - KPBRERTEES
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong BMEXZMERATRS LmHRA
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also (TEm#RA ) 2 @A TR > T
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the HIAEER M2 T EZ ST HEM
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Ho
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs BEBESMASCEAE TERENR
that are first effective or available for early adoption HAEAREBRRAQ TR
for the current accounting period of the Group and the BIEBERM i RSB BB
Company. Note 1(e) provides information on any changes AR o M1 (e)iRIEBRBERE X
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of ERLEZREHEAEEAIKS
these developments to the extent that they are relevant ASTHREAER Wk WA R
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods L2 BEZEMNEHER -
reflected in these financial statements.
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) MEHRERREE
The consolidated financial statements comprise the SEHRBREBRAATREHMB A
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the A (A ) °
“Group”).
As the Group’s hypermarket stores are all located in HRAEE KB EHE2EARE
the PRC and most of the Group’s transactions are EAREEBRIHRZHIUAREE (A
conducted and denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), which R (RATEENE QT 2T EE
is the functional currency of the Company’s operating EB)VETREE > KBRS LA
subsidiaries, the financial statements are presented in R¥Z2% > REEHBEN  sTEER
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise BTN e NRARIZEEER,ARB T
stated. The functional currency of the Company is Hong (I[Bxl) e
Kong Dollars (“HK$”).
The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB392 BEE-—FE—_—#+=-HB=+—AH1
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The Group’s FE FAEEELEZEBOAARE
liabilities as at 31 December 2012 include bank loans 392,000,000t °c R=—ZE——F +=
of approximately RMB1,258 million granted under term A=t—-H AEEzEEBREEH
loan facility agreements which expire on 31 December EFmERETREBITERNAR
2018 with instalment repayments scheduled during their #51,258,000,0007T * R =ZF— N\
term. Due to the loss for the year, as at 31 December F+-_A=1+—HFH WREH
2012, the Company was in breach of certain earnings and RFIREEROHEEZ BFAZE
solvency related financial covenants included in the bank B R=E——&F+=-"H=+—8 -
loan facility agreements. The banks may therefore at their AABERBITENRREHEAER
discretion declare that all or part of the loans are repayable mA RETEE N 2 B IEERA o R1T5K
on demand and may enforce their security over the loans, HEL AR S - BEER 2R IBH
which are secured by the share capital of certain of the ENEEBEEERIHITER ZIKIF
Group’s subsidiaries. RMB1,206 million of the bank loans (UAKREBE THER T 2 BRAEIR
which were scheduled to be repaid after 31 December #) o AK%1,206,000,0007T ZR1T
2013 have therefore been classified as current liabilities in EF(EZEERENR=Z—= -
the consolidated statement of financial position and as a A=+—H®#EZ) BELERGESH%
result the Group had net current liabilities of approximately RRBRDEARBEBRAERR
RMB3,030 million as at 31 December 2012. —E-——FE+ZA=+—HZARHE
EFEEA R AKMEB,030,000,0007T ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 1% ¥ & Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

H

2T —

“EFZA=T-BLEFEBRBEHRBI UARBTHEN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.

Subsequent to the year end, the Company obtained a
waiver from the banks in respect of its non-compliance
with the financial covenants as at 31 December 2012.
Under the bank loan facility agreements, the next
assessment of the Company’s compliance with financial
covenants is scheduled to be performed in September
2013 based on the Group’s unaudited consolidated
financial information for the 12-month period ending 30
June 2013.

The directors note that despite the loss of approximately
RMB392 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group’s cash used in operations was significantly lower at
approximately RMB2 million and that the Group generated
cash from operations of approximately RMB519 million
during the year ended 31 December 2011. As disclosed in
note 5(b), the Company has implemented an organisational
restructuring plan to strengthen the Group’s retail business
and reduce operating costs. The directors believe this will
improve the performance and operating cash flows of the
Group going forward.

Based on the Group’s 2013 business plan and cash flow
forecast, the directors believe the Group will generate
sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months. In preparing the
cash flow forecast, the directors also consider the Group’s
ultimate holding company and the banks will continue to
support the Group to the extent necessary. The directors
are of the opinion that the assumptions which are included
in the cash flow forecast are reasonable.

In view of the waiver granted by the banks subsequent to
the year end and the above, the directors consider that
the Group will generate sufficient financial resources for its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements and
that it will be able to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 15 ¥ & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-_Z=—

F—=

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that financial guarantees issued and derivative financial
instruments are stated at their fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out in note 1(v)(i) and note 1(h)
respectively.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 1(z)).

Use of estimation and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 38.

Change in accounting policies
(i)  Adoption of new Standards or Interpretations

The HKICPA has issued a few amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the following development is relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

° Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

ZE+ZRAE=T-HLEFE(BRBEHRBIN UARBTHEN)

TESEE (R

(c)

(d)

(e)

HRER

FENSEMEREMRACTEEE
BRESRAE D BT R EE K
RMFEE(V)() R MIEE1(h) B RE 3 H = Bt
EIERRITESR T ARILAA RERT

o

ol

FRBEERGHEZHG UREE
A ARBEREE KA 2 BKE TR
(EMsE1(2)) °

5 Al 5t B2 #) R

AT BMHREER 2 HBR
EEEEEBFHEERABRRE
E 86 WARRXZBESEZ
FIE -~ BT REBR o ZE b RIEE
BRUABEERREETERTES
B NEEMEAZERE  FEER
BRAREREMRESH2EERE
BREEABEE BRERNS
BRIRNZEMEE -

FEESFERIZS M RABR
R o MG 2B EXEREY
AR Z R P ERDERIER ; S
R BERRARGE - BMETTE
MR AR ERREBIEE °

FREEEERATEMBREER
BAEFHE M B REREATEZH
B REHBARETFEBRERKR
AR 2 fhE - ERMFESSF ML o

B BERZ2S
() FRAAFER| L2 FE
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Mo B LUTEBENERZ
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s EBRBMBREEREIR

#E
(BATA) M T A&
EF-EBRETHEE

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 1% ¥ & Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-_Z—

“EFZA=T-BLEFEBRBEHRBI UARBTHEN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

(i)

(i)

Adoption of new Standards or Interpretations
(Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 40).

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain
disclosures to be included in the financial statements
in respect of transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety and for any continuing
involvement in transferred financial assets that are
derecognised in their entirety, irrespective of when
the related transfer transaction occurred. However,
an entity need not provide the disclosures for the
comparative period in the first year of adoption.
The Group did not have any significant transfers of
financial assets in previous periods or the current
period which require disclosure in the current
accounting period under the amendments.

Voluntary changes - Change in inventory costing
method

Previously, the Group calculated the cost of
inventories located in the Group’s hypermarket stores
under the retail method, by reference to the retail
selling price of goods less the average gross profit
margins. During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group adopted a new policy of calculating the
cost of inventories, including inventories located
in the hypermarket stores and distribution centres,
using the moving weighted average cost method. The
directors consider the new policy is more relevant
and beneficial for monitoring the performance of each
inventory unit.

The change in accounting policy has no material
impact to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in prior years. Accordingly, no retrospective
adjustment has been made to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for prior years.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 15 ¥ & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
“F+TZA=T-BLEFE(RIEHRBPN UARBTHEN)

BE-_Z=—

F—=

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and the total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(m)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 1(z)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration
transferred over the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

Any excess of the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities over the fair value of the
consideration transferred is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged
(see note 1(i)).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains or losses on
remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument to fair
value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE (E)
(Continued)

(i) Cash flow hedges (Continued) (i) BEREP (H)
If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results ERE R cERR G HEAEIASR
in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, EESCREE EREAERZRHVERE
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to RZEBEFESEZBAZEED A
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which EeEESEERZNE —NZEAHE
the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss A (FlE R S U AR ) 7
(such as when interest income or expense is recognised). RBEEZ -
For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the BRI EABMEARRREZE SR
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain A ERERPORIAZERESS
or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the EHHEP RS EBENE—
same period or periods during which the hedged forecast RZERERERRIEER
transaction affects profit or loss.
When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated EYHHRTERNAHHE - RIERITHE
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the R EEFUHZIEE 2 ¥R ER > mH
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is HHP AR ZNEREER HR
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that FEEEREERZAN  EEERS
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it B AR EMBURTERS o BWEIPR
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the SEBTERE  HEN TP 2
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, FEREZSHEERAIES -

the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.

(i) Property, plant and equipment () WE -BEERE

The following items of property, plant and equipment UTHE- - BRERZEZEB R

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and A BT E RBEEBE (R

impairment losses (see note 1(m)): 1(m)) % BR :

- buildings held for own use which are situated on - fREEtriEEEERAZE
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building FoREVHEHER  BF2OR
could be measured separately from the fair value of BErHEBAE L AR ED ST
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see E(RH=E10) 0 &
note 1(l)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment. - HttWERRZMEER -

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of HERHEYE  MERREEE 2

an item of property, plant and equipment are determined FrEAzBm U HERBRIEFRENR

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and HEERAMEBEZEZHETE » WHRESR

the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in HEHBBRREBER °

profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 30
years after the date of completion.

— Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

term of the lease

—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 -5 years

—  Motor vehicles 3 - 6 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognised
as a result of a business combination is based on market
value. The market value of property is the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the
date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion. The market value of
items of leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, and motor vehicles is based on the quoted
market price for similar items.

Stores under fit out represent the cost of leasehold
improvements and other fit out costs incurred to
date. Stores under fit out are transferred to leasehold
improvements and the relevant other asset categories
when the stores are substantially ready for their intended
use. No depreciation is provided in respect of stores under
fit out.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent the favourable aspect of
operating leases relative to market terms acquired in
business combinations, where the acquiree is the lessee.
These intangible assets are recognised and measured at
fair value upon acquisition. The fair value is determined
based on a comparison of the market and contractual
rental rates at the date of acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets associated with favourable aspects of
operating leases acquired in a business combination are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1(m)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(j). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 1(m). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

TESEE (R

(k) BBEEE (FHERKRMD) (H)

U]

REBESHPRBREEEHRESF
SHEBCETLEE  UBAHERR
sHBSERORE (R EE1(m)) B R
MR SR o MIEUBLERRT
HEMNBZEPIX -

HEEE

fied 2 5= [BR TE A 185 E R HA BB — 18
REF—EERFIE-—ERZEEE
BEZHERABEHEURN -—FR—E
BRBZZY  ZEZHEBRRES
HE - ZEREDEZF2EEMF
i MARZARFEERIEEZ
EEER ©
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal repayments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of the assets),
where the effect of discounting is material.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

— intangible assets;

— prepaid lease payments for premises;

- investments in subsidiaries; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(m)(i) and

() (i)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the moving weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(m)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends
on preference share capital classified as equity are
recognised as distributions within equity.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

®)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(v)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits/accumulated

losses).

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(v)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

(w) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTEE (E)
(Continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (Continued) (w) WARER (8)

()  Sale of goods () HEEm
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and WAREEE2EXRERE KRGS
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the EETFEZRED  c WAL E
customers. Revenue excludes value added tax or FEERNEMEER - HEH
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade MREAZE ST -
discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases (i) EEHEZFHAEKRA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is EEHECEREERAERE
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over HFTRE 2 2R ST
the periods covered by the lease term, except where BEBER EHEMEEETE
an alternative basis is more representative of the REMEMWRMREBHEHEEERR
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the EEZWREXRIN - HER
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised HEBRPRABETEREES
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate RIEFHE2ETEZIMG - FAHEE
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals EHRE 2 HBAER A
are recognised as income in the accounting period in A e

which they are earned.

(iii) Promotion and service income/fees (i) HERBERA L
Promotion and service income/fees not related to the HWERBBWA ZH (EES
purchase of goods are recognised when the services ERER) NRHRISE -

are rendered.

(iv) Dividends (iv) KRE
Dividend income from unlisted investments is FEEHEREZERERARKRRR
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive BRI 2 ERITE LB TERE ©

payment is established.

(v) Interest income (v) FEUWKA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the MEWAIZER AR ENR BT
effective interest method. T o

(vi) Government grants (vi) BT B
Government grants are recognised in the statement BR@BRAEEEASERR
of financial position initially when there is reasonable HBE WK AS BTSRRI
assurance that they will be received and that the T DA AR R o /@
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to BFAEE @B REZHR
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses ERAZENERHERSER
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss BB - HEAEBEEREAZ
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which e EHEBEEREAESN
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate o HERZEENFERFH
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from AL ITER X A RN EETE
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently o

are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Translation of foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Except as noted below, exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of entities outside the PRC are translated
into Renminbi yuan (“RMB”) at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. The assets and liabilities of
entities outside the PRC are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in foreign
operations are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the consolidated financial statements.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset, which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
(Continued)

(z) Non-current assets held for sale (2)

TESEE (R

FHEZFRBEE

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount
will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for sale in its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group
in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group and the Company are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits and
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries).
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

(aa) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

E-EFRBEE (RHEAS) 28k
E{ERATREEBIEERZ MIFEBE
BEAmYE - WEARRRHE
ZEFRBDEE (FHEAS) WD
BRAGHE - HEMASE—4HEER
E-XZP-—EH  MEXFEE
EENMBEAEARZPER -

EDERGHERMNA  FRADEE
(ER—-—EASH2MEENEE
REE) RO WA 2S5 BRGNS -
FHEZEENRI ERTHERSR
REEHE  FRBEE (LT Ak
ZETEERI) NHEAS UK
HERDABEHREERS 2BEKE
BR - EAKERA DT 2 BRE
hWEERALTERR2EEIRE
BRELEHREEE  BERAELEZ
EEREHMEE (HBARZRER
)  cMEEEMESGHE  FE#
BEWHIBEEZHRRTE -

RONBEDBRSHERNIMESFHE
ZHBEEHEZREBBRERER
B REFRBEERSERTH
S IWIERGHEZHEAS
ZHRBDEETTINENMHE -

(aa) HEAA L

(@ —BAL JZALTZ-—RBE
oW RERNEEERE

)y ZATHAEBEZGE

o 3 [3] 2= I FE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) RATERFELREER S X
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) FALTREAEERLTEEH

the Group or the Group’s parent.

BRAIZEEEEERE -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(aa) Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(ab) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various operations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 2 WENBERAF

On 14 October 2011, the Company entered into an acquisition R—ZE——F+A+MA K
agreement to acquire from Whole Sino Limited (“Whole Whole Sino Limited (I'Whole Sino ) (%
Sino”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group’s ultimate AEEBRARAERATAZ—ZXZTENE
holding company, the entire issued share capital and all the AT E]'_Luiﬁﬁ’riy’, & DLW BEExcel Worth
outstanding shareholder’s loan of Excel Worth Limited (“Excel Limited ([Excel Worth ]) 2 2 Z8E 21T i%
Worth”) which, through its subsidiaries in the PRC, operates KRB REEZEREEN » Excel Worth
four hypermarkets in the PRC. The total consideration for the FERENPE KB R BRPEZLENR
acquisition was entirely satisfied by the allotment and issuance REED « WIBZREBRABEZHBLLF
by the Company to Whole Sino of 2,211,382,609 Series D LAT 2% K2 2% 172,211,382,609 % DZ 5| Al #2
convertible preference shares. This transaction constituted Eﬁ{E%HQZHEﬁi'ﬁ%WhoIe Sino ° X
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing %%ﬁktm%ﬁﬁﬂ%14A§E§TZEﬁEfi
Rules and the Company has complied with the disclosure SRAQNTECESTRE LHIRAEI14AZ
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing ZIWBRE -

Rules.

As the major conditions precedent needed to complete the ER—ZE——F—F—HEARELEKE
acquisition of Excel Worth had been substantially fulfilled on 1T W BB Excel WorchEEﬁJ&ﬂm# ¥iN
1 January 2012, the Company and Whole Sino jointly agreed A& &R Whole SinoJ[EZE #§Excel Worth
to transfer control over Excel Worth’s financial and operating CHBREBRE EHER B ——
policies to the Company on 1 January 2012. Accordingly, Excel F—B—HEBZEARRQNF F It > Excel
Worth has been accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company WorthBE B ([WiEHR ) RAAREEz—
from that date (the “Acquisition Date”). KB AT °

The acquisition of Excel Worth and its subsidiaries, which W BEExcel Worth & E B A 7] J5 5 A U
has been accounted for using the acquisition method of BEAE RWBHYAEEEERE
accounting, had the following effect on the Group’s assets and BZHENMT :

liabilities on the Acquisition Date:

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounts adjustment acquisition
Wi Bl 2 ARE W B8 B

REE FE A
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 83,306 2,404 85,710
Intangible assets mEEE - 31,250 31,250
Inventories FE 59,369 2,996 62,365
Trade and other receivables &E K HE A EURFRIE 89,764 - 89,764
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFALEHE 21,163 - 21,163
Trade and other payables IE N Ho b RS FE (292,558) = (292,558)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) ELERBEE(BF) 5,895 (9,162) (3,267)
Net assets acquired WECEEFE (33,061) 27,488 (5,573)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 14) WiE 2 B & (MaE14) 434,493
Cost of acquisition Y B B AR 428,920
Total consideration, satisfied by BAREUUT AR A
— Issue of Series D convertible —BITDRI IR E LR
preference shares (note 28(a)) (FffE28(a)) 428,920
Net cash inflow in respect of acquisition BRIV EHE QT2
of subsidiaries WERANFHE
- Cash and cash equivalents acquired —WERENRRESEEE 21,163
The fair value of the convertible preference shares issued BERITZABRBRELERAABR -BILE
was determined based on a valuation report prepared by an =hAEMZEEREMEE -

independent third party valuer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z--F+-A=+-RLFE(KRIZEHTEN  UARBTHER)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 3 % XZEK o IEHR

The principal activity of the Group is the operation of REBETEXHKIINRTELE KAB
hypermarket stores in the PRC. Turnover represents the net Hmeo EEBNAEBRNARERHEESER
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group ISR BN 2 BEEHIRE E ~ IR IEE
to external customers, less returns, discounts and value added i o
taxes.
The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no AEBCvEEERZEL  BEBEEZR
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the ZIEAREEWZEB10% °
Group’s revenue.
All revenue from external customers are generated in the PRC AN REE2WEZRERTERAER
and all significant operating assets of the Group are located FIEEREBEEENRTE - Bt » R"E
in the PRC. Accordingly, the Group has a single operating and EEE —AXBERFETH -—RIPRELE
reportable segment — operation of hypermarket stores in the REGES °
PRC.
4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 4 HttWm Rk Hfs (BE)
(LOSS)/INCOME WA R
Consolidated
mEe
2012 2011
—_E—_F —E——&F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREBT T
Other revenue Hfth Uy 25
Leasing of store premises JEERE 369,396 285,712
Other promotion and service income H i B R RIS WA 66,326 70,572
Interest income FE WA 8,494 5,686
Government grants (note (i) 8IS 78 Bl (BT 2 (i) 19,607 15,587
463,823 SIS 51/
Other net (loss)/income Hi (FE) WA FEE
Net foreign exchange gain [E 5, )am A F 2R 5,532 20,407
Net (loss)/gain from store lease BUHESHEE 2 (BE),
cancellations (note (i) ya A EE (B EE (i) (21,014) 978
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEZEHIBFE (20,301) (4,223)
(35,783) 17,162
Notes: M &E
() Government grants represent subsidies received from local () BFmB A BUTIRME 2R -
authorities.
(ii)  This represents the estimated losses to be incurred by the Group iy UWBAAEEREGEMERELETINRK
in relation to its early cancellation of leases for two new store R MNEEREF R ZHEREFCEMER
operating projects and two Lotus Life Stations. ZIaEtEsiE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN)

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRBLAT (B518) R
RBUAT (B518) MRIE PR BE -

Consolidated

F=)
2012 2011
—E—_=F —_T——F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T AR T
(a) Finance costs: (@ ME/HRA :
Interest on borrowings wholly- REFERABHEEEZ
repayable within five years: ERAE :
- Bank loans —RITER 3,973 86,397
- Other loans —HLE M 10,798 11,397
Interest on bank loan repayable REFEREEEZRIT
after five years BERAE 46,092 77
Finance charges on obligations MEHEET 2 MEER
under finance leases (note 25) (Pt 5E25) 18,806 19,359
Total interest expense on financial FRAAREBETFTABREZ
liabilities not at fair value through TREEZARNE
profit or loss 79,669 117,230
Interest-rate swaps: FIRIEHZZ 5 -
cash flow hedges, BERE I+
reclassified from equity REREDE - 3,343
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees ERZHEKERER 9,226 29,114
88,895 149,687
(b) Staff costs: (b) EBERA :
Salaries, wages and other benefits HFe IERHEMEBF 828,042 665,091
Contributions to defined EREMH R INGH B 2 K
contribution retirement plans 72,756 57,478
Termination benefits (note (i) BHRIEFHE (BFEEG) 42,908 -
943,706 722,569
(c) Other items: (c) HfbEA :
Depreciation of property, ME -BEREZEZINE
plant and equipment 191,236 181,753
Amortisation #aE
- land lease premium —TH#BEERE 6,293 6,294
— intangible assets —-BEEE 13,152 10,713
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE B £
- audit service —Et R 3,600 3,550
Operating lease charges EEHEEEAR
— property rentals —YERE 503,248 411,943
Donations BR 1,090 1,427
Cost of inventories (note 17) FEAA (MEE17) 8,914,309 8,243,734

Note:

(U]

Pursuant to an organisation restructuring plan approved
in November 2012, the Group determined to terminate the

employment of certain staff.

B &E -

() RE-ZE-——F+-AEZRBEA
B AEBRERLEAETHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
EoE-_FF+ZA=1+-HLFE (RBEHBHI UAR¥ETHEN)

B

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

6 %’;%é%ﬁﬂ&)\i&%iﬁﬂ%

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REFREZEBAFRRZHIET :
comprehensive income represents:
2012 2011
=F-=F =F——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE T ARET T
Current tax - PRC B HA 5 18 — P
Provision for the year FERE 23,012 20,473
Deferred tax EREB 18
Origination and reversal EEREREEESR
of temporary differences (MtzE27(b))
(note 27(b)) 44,133 (9,547)
Taxation expense HMIEE A 67,145 10,926

Income tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate any

assessable profits in Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the

British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT law”) of
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC income tax at 25% (2011: 25%) on their
assessable profits as determined in accordance with the

CIT law.

Further, under the CIT law, 10% withholding tax is levied
on the foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign invested enterprise’s profit earned
after 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2012, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group had accumulated losses and
therefore no deferred tax liabilities were recognised in this

regard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 15 ¥ & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

A= —d
=]

=1

SN

(1

~~

Eé%é%ﬁﬂ&)\ﬁ%Zﬁﬂ%

(b) HEBRAESTRRZERABRFE

profit at applicable tax rates: ZEEWMT :
2012 2011
—_E—_F —_E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR T

(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B518) & F (324,494) 34,686
Notional tax on profit before BA25% 5t & 2 BR %t Al & K

taxation, calculated at 25% BEHRE(ZZE——F

(2011: 25%) (note) 25%) (FF&E) (81,124) 8,672
Tax effect of non-deductible TAHBRALZ 2B &

expenses 23,557 27,075
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBBEB2HEEE

recognised 54,164 21,822
Tax effect of prior year’s FREFRERBRIEERE

unrecognised tax losses utilised PAE S = (46,491)
Tax effect of prior year’s EEH EE

recognised tax losses AECEABEERE

expired/reversed 2B 56,778 =
Tax effect of temporary differences FBERGRFEFE 2RE L

not recognised 13,770 (152)
Actual tax expense ERHRIBEER 67,145 10,926
Note: The PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%) Mzt : ARAEEETERPEEE W

is used as the operations of the Group are substantially
based in the PRC.

P25% (ZZF——4F : 25%) 2 ¥
Bl ¥MERBETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

B

7

2T —

“EFZA=T-BLEFEBRBEHRBI UARBTHEN)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012:

7 EEME

REEBRAKRAIFE161RKE 2 ESH
TWT :

BECZE-"F+-A=1+—-HLFE:

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus contributions Sub-total payment Total
e BAR NRB A
EZhe FESAE  ME2RAL  BHEHR Nt E@xf ag
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR AR%TR ARBTRT ARETR ARETR
Executive directors HrES
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont HERTE - - - - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont ~ #E AL 4E - 4,729 - 11 4,740 - 4,740
Mr. Narong Chearavanont HnELE - 5,095 - 5,095 - 5,095
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed REELE - 3,304 - 3,313 - 3,313
Mr. Michael Ross EXIELE - 3,450 - - 3,450 = 3,450
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BNEESE - 2,526 - 1 2,537 - 2,537
Mr. Li Wen Hai THEELE - 3,225 - - 3,225 - 3,225
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont AR LE - 762 - - 762 - 762
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont ~ H{$A1- %4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong ~ Umroong Sanphasitvong %4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho I FE%4% - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul ~ Piyawat Titasattavorakul % & - - - - - - -
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo HR#LE - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnitt 4 195 - - - 195 - 195
Mr. Chokchai Kotikula Chokchai Kotikula% 4 49 - - - 49 - 49
Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara Songkitti Jaggabatara’t & 146 - - - 146 - 146
Mr. ltthapormn Subhawong Itthaporn Subhawong % 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Prasobsook Boondech Prasobsook Boondech’ 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BHNEE 195 - - - 195 - 195
Total an 585 23,091 - 3 23,707 - 23,707
Note: Messrs. Dhanin Chearavanont and Robert Ping-Hsien Ho iz : R=Z2——FWA—H  #HERELEENR

resigned as executive directors of the Company and Mr.
Chokchai Kotikula resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 April 2012; Mr. Shih Hong-Mo
resigned as executive director of the Company on 31 December
2012; Messrs. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed and Songkitti Jaggabatara
were appointed as executive director and independent non-
executive director of the Company, respectively, on 1 April
2012; Messrs. Itthaporn Subhawong and Prasobsook Boondech
were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 31 December 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated loss/profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of RMB40,613,000 (2011:
RMB75,809,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 29(a)).

BE-Z-—F+t-A=t-ALFEBRBAERNN LARBTRER)
7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7 EEME (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2011: HE-_Z——F+-A=+—HLEEE:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus  contributions Sub-total payment Total
RS HERS
EShe  FBEETE  MELRL  BHEER it =4 30) k]
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR¥Tn ARETRT AR%Tn ARETR AR%ETn ARETR
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont HEREE - - - - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont  #E A L4 - 4,124 - 10 4,134 - 4,134
Mr. Narong Chearavanont EEE Yk - 4,288 - = 4,288 = 4,288
Mr. Li Wen Hai THEBLE - 2,715 - - 2,715 - 2,715
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont HRARLE - 775 - - 775 - 775
Mr. Michael Ross BFELE - 4,201 - - 4,201 - 4,201
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BOERE - 2,305 - 10 2315 = 2315
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong ~ Umroong Sanphasitvong %t 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho £ B%4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont  Hf$81= %4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul  Piyawat Titasattavorakul % £ - - - - - - -
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo BRREE - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnitt & 199 = = = 199 - 199
Mr. Chokchai Kotikula Chokchai Kotikula% 4 199 = = = 199 - 199
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo gHREE 199 - - - 199 - 199
Total a5 597 18,408 - 20 19,025 - 19,025
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, there g8z _FE—_—_Fp_—_=——=+=—_A8
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors ZS+-HLEZEER AEBHMERNES
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as T HEMNMESEEBEZMAREFRRR
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director waived IOABE 2 SREN SR BEE <~ B2 8 o kbAh - AE
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2012 and AP E—_—_EREBE——F+=-HA=+—
2011. ALECHER  BIBEESHETAME -
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8 BREFHFMES
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, five (2011: ETENEREFMEES AU (ZF——
five) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. F RN BARES  HME S AMETHE
EE o
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 9

Y2
NL

/i

’Lﬁﬁﬂiiﬁ'ﬁ{ﬁ (B8]~

RABRREMLEGE (BE) 5F7E8EA
K #40,613,000t 2 BE (ZZF——F :
A K #75,809,0007t) @ W E 5 AKRA A
Z U ER (MEE29(a))
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z--F+-A=+-RLFE(KRIZEHTEN  UARBTHER)

10 DIVIDENDS 10 R &
No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended 31 g8z _FE—_—_Fp_—_=——+=A8
December 2012 and 2011, nor has any dividend been proposed =t+—HIZEER  HBREIEZK
since the reporting date. BRE > WHIRS A EMERBIREEM
BE o
11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 8K (&8) EF
(a) Basic (a) EXR
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is BREAN (BE) SRR THER
based on the following data: E
2012 2011
—E—CF —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTR

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable 7522 & IR R FE{L 2 FE

to equity shareholders (E518) & F
of the Company (391,530) 23,813
The weighted average number of shares is calculated MEFHRODEE LT HERETE :
based on the following data:
2012 2011
—E—_F —_E2——F
Number of ordinary shares R—BA—HEB®ITZ
in issue at 1 January i R AR 2 9,184,414,410 | 9,184,414,410
Effect of ordinary shares R=Z2—Z-—FRA=+N1H
issued upon exercise of TEBEREMZBITEBER
share options on 29 May 2012 %4 362,141,376 =
Number of Series A convertible BEITZARYI AR
preference shares in issue BEERRE 1,518,807,075 | 1,518,807,075
Number of Series B convertible BT ZBRI TR
preference shares in issue 1B IRE 3,897,110,334 | 3,897,110,334
Effect of Series C convertible RZE——F+=ZA=+=H
preference shares issued BITCRIIMABRE LR
on 23 December 2011 2EE 3,673,765,764 545,078,075
Effect of Series D convertible R-ZE——F—H—HET
preference shares issued DA 5 A j% 2 £ A%
on 1 January 2012 (note 2) 222 (MzE2) 2,211,382,609 =
Total EE 20,847,621,568 | 15,145,409,894
As set out in note 28(a), the holders of the convertible RIEHIE28(a) @ ATARELRIFTE A
preference shares are entitled to receive the same NEEHEEBEREE AKEMERERE
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. ZIER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN)

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 S8 (F58) & F ()
(Continued)
(b) Diluted (b) #38
The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December BE—_E——&5+-A=+—HIE
2012 is the same as the basic loss per share as all EzEREBEBEHEEREXRER
potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive. HE AfMEEEEBERYBREE
:H:_ °
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the BE=ZE——F+ZHA=+— EIJJ:E
year ended 31 December 2011 is based on the following Ez8REBFEFIRTIERFTE
data:
2011
—E2——F
RMB’ 000
ARE T
Profit for the year attributable to equity AAARREEZEE
shareholders of the Company (diluted) i ) (155) 23,813
The weighted average number of shares (diluted) for the BE-E——F+-A=1+t—HLHF
year ended 31 December 2011 is calculated based on the EZEEHORGEE (#58) LT
following data: FERFEHE
2011
—_E——F
Weighted average number of shares BE+-A=1t-HLEFEZ
for the year ended 31 December janfféﬂ?i’]ﬂﬁﬁ%z B 15,145,409,894
Effect of share options EREZZE 1,009,597,522
Weighted average number of shares BE+t-RB=t—HLEEZ
(diluted) for the year ended 31 December MEEFHERMEE (E8E) 16,155,007,416
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z--F+-A=+-RLFE(KRIZEHTEN  UARBTHER)

12 FIXED ASSETS

12EEEE

(a) The Group (a) &A5HE
Interests in
leasehold
land held for
Furniture, Stores own use under
Leasehold fixtures and Motor under operating
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles fit out Sub-total leases Total
B 28 EEHEZEA
| HELE e RE  EEBRZER Nt THEEER )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETT ARBT R ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2011 RZE--£-F-H 234,481 1,394,659 480,186 30,852 30,865 2,171,043 201,042 2,372,085
Exchange adjustments ERHE - @ (133) (240) - 877) - (377)
Additions HE - 14,807 20,118 804 173,233 208,962 - 208,962
Transfer &% = 119,481 40,968 1,255 (161,704) - - .
Transfer to assets held BYRRALEEE

for sale (note 21) (Wrto1) - (7,055) (4,953) - (483) (12,491) - (12,491)
Disposels e (141) (3,309) (69,849) (4,638) = (77,931) = (77,931)
At 31 December 2011 R=E--+-fA=1-H 234,340 1,518,585 466,337 28,033 4,91 2,289,206 201,042 2,490,248
At 1 January 2012 RZE-Z5-F-H 234,340 1,518,585 466,337 28,033 4,911 2,289,206 201,042 2,490,248
Exchange adjustments EiAE - - - @ - @ - @)
Additions RE - 37,349 46,692 5,381 191,947 281,369 - 281,369
Addition through acquisition W8 2 /R E (Mft2)

(note 2) - 74,038 9,37 7 2,229 85,710 - 85,710
Transfer g% - 83,986 45,253 323 (129,562) - - -
Disposals he A (14,485) (82,484) (3.291) (4218) (104,478) - (104,478)
At 31 December 2012 WZZ--f+-B=1-H 234,340 1,699,473 485,169 30,514 102,307 2,551,803 201,042 2,752,845
Accumulated depreciation 23T E R EASE :

and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2011 W-Z--£-A-A 54,623 332,257 236,824 19,760 4,218 647,682 34,215 681,897
Exchange adjustments ENRE - @ (131) (215) - (350) - (350)
Charge for the year EERRR 11,406 115,195 52,344 2,808 - 181,753 6,294 188,047
Transfer to assets held EYBHHELE

for sale (note 21) (Hst1) = (370) (291) - S (661) - (661)
Written back on disposal  HiEZE 41) (2,166) (63,552) (4,269) = (70,028) 4 (70,028)
At 31 December 2011 R=E--+=fA=1+-H 65,988 444912 225,194 18,084 4218 758,396 40,509 798,905
At 1 January 2012 RZE-Z%-F-H 65,988 444,912 225,194 18,084 4218 758,396 40,509 798,905
Exchange adjustments EiAE - - - (1) - (1) - (1)
Charge for the year FERER 11,405 120,978 56,389 2,464 - 191,236 6,293 197,529
Impairment loss REEE - - - - 634 634 - 634
Written back on disposal ~ H&ZE& = (6,814) (67,127) (2,844) (4218) (81,003) = (81,003)
At 31 December 2012 R=E-—f+-fA=1-H 77,393 559,076 214,456 17,708 634 869,262 46,802 916,064
Net book value: REHE :

At 31 December 2012 RZE-—f+-fA=1-H 156,947 1,140,397 270,713 12,811 101,673 1,682,541 154,240 1,836,781
At 31 December 2011 RZE--f£+ZA=1-H 168,352 1,073,673 241,143 9,949 37,693 1,530,810 160,533 1,691,343
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-—FS+-A=+-RLFE(KRIEHHEN  UARBTHER) m

12 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 12EBEEE (&)

(b) The Company (b) A&AF
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
R B
HEX®E K& AE k]
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETT ARBTn AR%BTnR AR%®Txn
Cost: A
At 1 January 2011 R-ZZE——fF—H—H 147 3,096 5,621 8,864
Exchange adjustments fE 5 (4) (133) (240) (377)
Additions nE - 33 — 33
Disposals HE (143) (702) (1,291) (2,136)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——5+=-A=+—H - 2,294 4,090 6,384
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——-%—HA—H - 2,294 4,090 6,384
Exchange adjustments B 5 38 % = = (4) (4)
Additions nE - - 1,479 1,479
Disposals HE - @) - @)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-——Ff+-B=+—~H - 2,292 5,565 7,857
Accumulated depreciation: 2T E :
At 1 January 2011 R=—Z——%—-A—H 147 3,064 4,921 8,132
Exchange adjustments b 5 (4) (131) (216) (351)
Charge for the year FEAER - 23 410 433
Written back on disposal & 2 B (143) (702) (1,291) (2,136)
At 31 December 2011 R=E——F+=-A=t—H - 2,254 3,824 6,078
At 1 January 2012 R-E-——§-A—H - 2,254 3,824 6,078
Exchange adjustments ERAZE - = (1) (1)
Charge for the year FEAER - 8 497 505
Written back on disposal HE 2 B # = (2) 5 @)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE-——F+=ZA=+—H - 2,260 4,320 6,580
Net book value: BREE :
At 31 December 2012 R=—ZF-——f+=-A=+—H = 32 1,245 1,277
At 31 December 2011 R=—ZE——5+=-HB=+—H - 40 266 306

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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12 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as

12BEEE (&)
(c) MEZEREEIWNNOT :

follows:
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E—_=F —_T——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE TR ARBT T
In the PRC RHPEA
— medium-term leases —FHEE 311,187 328,885
Representing: ZEIA
Buildings BF 156,947 168,352
Interests in leasehold land EEHECERIEERES
held for own use under
operating leases 154,240 160,533
311,187 328,885

(d) Fixed assets held under finance leases

At 31 December 2012, the net book value of buildings held
under finance leases of the Group was RMB135,127,000
(2011: RMB145,639,000). The leases do not include
contingent rentals. The buildings are situated in the PRC
and held under medium term land use rights.

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(d REHEREZETEE

RZE——-F+ZHA=+—H K&
ERmEHEEFCREEAARY
135,127,000t (=& ——F : AR
145,639,0007t) ° WWHAEI N EFED
AREL - BFUAFTE > WELRHHL
HFAEEE -

13 B EE

The Group
KEE
2012 2011
—B-—F =F——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREET T
Cost: A
At 1 January ®R—HB—H 232,000 232,000
Addition from acquisition (note 2) W i = 380 (B EE2) 31,250 -
At 31 December R+ZBA=+—H 263,250 232,000
Accumulated amortisation: REHE
At 1 January m—HB—H 30,918 20,205
Charge for the year FERER 13,152 10,713
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 44,070 30,918
Net book value: BRMEI{H - 219,180 201,082
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BE-Z-—FS+-A=+-RLFE(KRIEHHEN  UARBTHER)

13 B EE (&)

BREERR_ZEZN\FER_ZT-—_F
(MfaE2) WM B AR friE 4 EHEE
hEEE - W2 AR ERBYE =1k
EREREERSERER 2mERS
LBk BB QAR HESEEN
REZAREMEE - BFLEELER
ERBTHEDR (H10E30FT%) #H -

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements acquired
in the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and 2012 (note 2). The
fair value on acquisition was determined based on a valuation
report prepared by an independent third party valuer and a
comparison of the market rental rates at the date of acquisition
and the estimated present value of payments due under the
lease contracts entered into by the acquired subsidiaries. The
intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method
over the remaining lease terms which vary from 10 to 30 years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Distribution RERZBEEREERREEZHEHKRAIR

and store operating costs” in the consolidated statement of XA  EEB AR EERAK | o
comprehensive income.
14 GOODWILL 14 P&
The Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E--F —E2——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T ARBT T
Cost: A
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 2,770,789 2,770,789
Addition (note 2) 320 (FEE2) 434,493 =
At 31 December BR+=—A=+—H 3,205,282 2,770,789
Accumulated impairment losses: REtREEE
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—HR+=-ZA=+—H (51,004) (51,004)
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,154,278 2,719,785

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying amount of
goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) as follows:

BEREZREEAEURENR

R=B-——FR_"F——F+_F=+—
B BEZREEIREASENTZR
SELEBEMN(REEELEEMD

2012 2011

—g-=%| =®--%

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR T ARET T

East China Region FERIE 3,026,873 2,680,871
South China Region EmihE 124,007 35,516
North China Region FEiHE 3,398 3,398
3,154,278 2,719,785

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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14 GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU/group of CGUs
is determined based on value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those relating
to the discount rate, forecast growth rates, and the expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period, which are
extrapolated up to the following ten years by using estimated
growth rates of 0%-6% per annum (2011: 3% to 6% per
annum). The forecasts are extrapolated beyond ten years based
on estimated long-term average growth rates of 3% per annum.
The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The
discount rate of 11% (2011: 11%) used reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. Changes in gross margin, selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market.

15 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

14 B2 (&)

BREESELESEN AREESEESENT
WEHEFEERNFEREER - TEFER
BEZEEBRRNDEBZEER ﬁwﬁ
RENEEHEERA ZARNRE - I

STEFRACERREREENCES IEJE
HEZ—FHBBEEE  LUASFO%E
6% (ZFE——F : §FE3I%ZE6%) 25T
WERMEREARARTE - BB TENTE
BIDERETEFEIRNRPFHERER
ML - FIRANEREATBHESE
EBENAETENREFHEER - B
ZENM% (ZE——F :11%) RBBRES
BHGESELAEVCSRERERES
EXBNEEZER - EF - EEHEHEE
mﬁz“ﬁgmﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁm2$

15 B A R &

The Company

¥ NN

2012 2011
=F-=F =F——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ET ARBET T

Unlisted shares/capital contributions, FETRGD BAEEZRAR
at cost 2,109,226 1,733,304
Add: Amounts due from subsidiaries hn: e U B B A B FRIE 1,550,998 1,497,697
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (229,303) (229,266)
3,430,921 3,001,735
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest FEHAZIZHJ*L\ IEEGEIKE - T ERE

bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The following list contains only the particulars of the Group’s
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The Group’s effective interest in the
entities below are all held by subsidiaries of the Company. The
entities below are all companies established in the PRC with
limited liability.
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15 B A (&)

(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Paid up capital effective interest
ARABE 5F (e AEEzENER
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E-CF 22— “E--f —E2--&
% %
TRENEREHETEARLF USD25,000,000% 7t USD25,000,000% 7o 100 100
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (fif&E1)
BERNETEHETERAR RMBA R %2,000,0000  RMBAE#2,000,0007 100 100
Xian Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 2) (K &F2)
BNZNETEHBTERAR RMBA K%2,000,000T  RMBA K®2,000,0007 100 100
Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 2) (Kf&F2)
EEGEREHBENERAR USD6,500,000% 7t USD6,500,000% 7t 100 100
Qingdao Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (K &E1)
ENZOEREHEHTERL T USD48,000,000% 7t USD48,000,000% 7t 100 100
Guangzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (B &E1)
WBEZAETEEEMARA USD12,000,000% 7t USD12,000,000% 7t 100 100
Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 3) ([ff&E3)
BUTRESEERERERREBRAT RMBA £ #3,000,0000  RMBA E#3,000,0007 100 100
Foshan Nanhai Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 2) (KtzF2)
Development Co., Ltd.
EREFBHERRBRAA RMBA K #29,500,000t RMBA K#29,500,0007 100 100
Guangdong Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 2) (f&£2)
Development Co., Ltd.
LREGNEREHBNERAR ([ LEER]) USD132,200,000% 7t USD132,200,000% 7t 100 100
Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“SLS”) (note 1) (Kt&E1)
ERREENHLERA T RMBA R#5,000,0000 RMBAR#5,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Changfa Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. (note 2) (KzF2)
LHRERTERAR RMB A [ #500,0007 RMBA R #500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yilian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (KzF2)
FERERETEBRAR RMB A K #60,000,0007 RMBA R #500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Cailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2, 4) (Ff&E2 4)
LRFEENEBRAF RMB A K #500,0007 RMBA K #500,0007T 100 100
Shanghai Xinlian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (i z£2)
EREEENERLT RMB A K #500,0007 RMBA K #500,0007T 100 100
Nantong Tonglian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2, 4) (M2 4)
ELFEBTERAH RMB A K #10,000,0007% RMBA K #500,0007 100 100
Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2, 4) (Fif&F2 - 4)
FEREEETMEBRAR RMB A K #500,0007 RMBA K #500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yalian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (K zF2)
LBEEBMEBRAR RMB A K #500,0007 RMBA K #500,0007T 100 100
Shanghai Jialian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (i &£2)
LT NBEREEZAGRAR RMBAK#8,949,0000  RMBAR#8,949,0007 100 100

Foshan C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd.

(note 4, 5) (34 + 5)

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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15 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15 B2 R Em (&)

(Continued)
Group’s
Name of companies Paid up capital effective interest
AFERB B iR A AEBzENES
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E-CF “E--f CZB--f —Z--%
% %
NEERCEEBERAA USD16,800,000% 7. USD16,800,0003% 7t 100 100
C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (note 1, 5) (fif&F1 - 5)
LBERMABRAA RMBA £ #1,000,000T  RMBA E#1,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. (note 2, 5) (&2 5)
LB NBESERMARAA RMBA K #10,000,000t RMBA K#10,000,0007 80 80
Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods Co., Ltd. (note 3, 5) (H{&3 » 5)
AREBEEZERAT RMB A & #600,0007¢ - 100 -
Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. (note 2, 5) (K2 5)
BEEEEHETARL T RMB A K %14,500,0007 - 100 -
Wuxi Ailian Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1, 6) (fitzF1 6)
REEEETERAR RMB A K #14,500,0007 - 100 -
Hefei Ailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 1, 6) (Fif&F1 - 6)
REONERHERAR RMB A K #14,500,0007 - 100 -

Changsha Chulian Supermarket Co., Ltd.

Notes:

O]
@

All are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

The equity interest is held by individual nominees on behalf of
the Company. These companies are domestic enterprises in
the PRC legally owned by PRC nationals. Due to the various
agreements in place, the directors of the Company, after taking
legal advice, consider that the Company has effective control over
the operational and financial policies of these enterprises and
therefore the financial results and positions of these enterprises
have been consolidated into the Group since their respective
dates of establishment.

In 2012, the Group acquired all the equity interest in Shanghai
Cailian Supermarket Co., Ltd., Nantong Tonglian Supermarket
Co., Ltd., and Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. from the
original individual nominees. As a result, these three entities were
converted into domestic enterprises in the PRC.

These are sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC.
These are domestic enterprises in the PRC.

C.P. Lotus Corporate Management Co., Ltd. is engaged in the
provision of management services to subsidiaries within the
Group. Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. and Foshan C.P.
Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. are engaged in the
provision of logistic services. Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods
Co., Ltd. and Xian Delian Trading Co., Ltd. are engaged in the
provision of sourcing products. All other companies listed above
are involved in the operation of hypermarket stores in the PRC.

The 100% equity interests of these entities were acquired by the
Group on 1 January 2012 (note 2).
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16 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR

16 BYU=HER

ZE+ZRAE=T-HLEFE(BRBEHRBIN UARBTHEN)

PREMISES
The Group
AEH
2012 2011
—B-_fF —Z2——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARET T
At 1 January B—A—H 17,145 12,673
Additions 0 38,890 11,274
Charged to profit or loss for the year FERNINLZEEZ (11,417) (6,802)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 44,618 17,145
Represented by: DRIA
Non-current portion I BN HA R 49 35,674 6,000
Current portion B HA 26 19 8,944 11,145
44,618 17,145

These amounts represent prepaid rentals for hypermarket

stores operated by the Group.

17 INVENTORIES

All inventories as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011
are finished goods merchandise. The analysis of the amount of

inventories recognised as an expense is as follows:

g8 -

17 &

FER=-F-——f+=-A=+t—-HEK=ZF
——F+- A=+ -HZEFEYRERM

hEBBEDAKESERE BT 2RNE

Ao BABTHZEEBBEINAOT :

The Group
AEHE

2012 2011
—8--%| =—B—-%&
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE TR ARET T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHTFEZRAE 8,900,331 8,227,799
Write-down of inventories FEZRE 13,978 15,935
8,914,309 8,243,734

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

18 € B K H M EWRIE

The Group The Company
~E AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—ER-—F | 2B —F | ZB-F | =B ——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR
Trade receivables, other EEREWIE - HthEW
receivables and deposits RIERT & 223,789 221,331 2,664 3,160
Amounts due from related FEULARRE ¥ R E
companies (note 36(b)) (KF=E36(b)) 624,155 358,926 5 7,492
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR T B 2 R R 1B - = 7,767 5,713
847,944 580,257 10,436 16,365

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental deposits
of the Group amounting to RMB56,136,000 (31 December
2011: RMB59,648,000) are expected to be recovered within one
year.

Included in the Group’s trade and other receivables are trade
debtors (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) with the
following ageing analysis, based on invoice date, as of the end
of the reporting period:

18

EE R HEMEWROE (F)

BRiEE®RE AR %56,136,0007T (
T--—F+-A=+-H:AR#
59,648,0007T) b FTEAREBEZEER
HttEWFBEERN - FRlE -

AEBEER AR HIREELER
WokiE (HIBRRRIRZBE) - RE|BEHR
ZEREBE DT :

The Group
AEH

2012 2011
—E2-_fF —Z2——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AR¥T T
Current BN HA 23,731 24,235
1 to 30 days overdue BHY—Z=1+H 4,708 2,031
31 to 60 days overdue mA=1+—HZA~TH 1,839 1,261
61 to 90 days overdue BHAT—HZEATH 1,805 101
Over 90 days BHE BB AT B 337 643
32,420 28,271

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 31(a). The directors
consider no impairment provision is required in respect of
the above trade debtors which are overdue as they relate to
counterparties that have a good track record with the Group.

19 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

At 31 December 2012, RMB185,206,000 (2011: RMB124,801,000)
of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to banks as
guarantees for the issuance of bank accepted bills for
payments to suppliers.

In addition, at 31 December 2012, RMB29,625,000 (2011:
RMB18,378,000) of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged
to banks for the issuance of letters of guarantee to landlords of
certain subsidiaries.

19

AEE 2 BRRBUREHMNHEE31(a) - EE
AEMER 2 EBRKFIE (EREEE
%g%%%&ﬁ%Z*ﬁ BX575) BATRER

EEHRT K

R-ZZE——-—F+-A=+—H ' KEEZ
RITFEFARY185,206,0007t (= ——
F . AR®124,801,0007t) B #H T R1T
gﬁm{%ﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁétﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘;z

i RAZE-——F+=ZHA=+—H:' A
R#29,625,000t (=& ——F : AR¥
18,378,0007t) 2 AKE B R TEARE KA
ﬁiﬁﬂﬁ]*ﬁ%ﬁ#%ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁm%ﬁ
|§| o

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEEEE
The Group The Company
TEE AN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—ER-F| ZB——F | ZB-_F | ZB——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR
Cash at bank and in hand ROTEERES 415,974 242,380 30,511 17,159

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group and of the Company
amounting to RMB18,747,000 (2011: RMB19,920,000) and
RMB4,000 (2011: RMB4,000) respectively are non-interest
bearing.
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21 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 21 n BASHESE
2012 2011
—-—f| —z—-—*&
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T
Property, plant and equipment (note 12) 4@% MR (MiEE12) - 11,830
Inventories ’TS_L = - 2,248
Trade and other receivables BN E AR - 1,849
- 15,927

On 2 September 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
with Whole Sino to dispose of SLS’s supermarket business
at the Madang Lu Store (“Madang Lu Store Business”) at a
consideration to be calculated as the sum of the book value
of the fixed assets, the costs of inventories and other assets,
less liabilities (if any), owned or held by SLS in relation to the
Madang Lu Store Business, and not in any event to exceed
RMB22 million. Accordingly, the assets to be disposed to
Whole Sino were accounted for in accordance with note 1(2)
and separately classified in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2011. The disposal was
completed on 1 March 2012 at a total consideration of RMB21
million. No gain or loss arose on this transaction.

This transaction constituted connected transaction as defined

RZE——FENBZ=H &2 FEHWhole
SinoF] A & HELBEEREERE
ZEMEXK(BEEREEXK]  RER
HEBEREERSTEEREER/E£TE
ZEEEERAE  FEREMEEZR
K BEE(WE) BERMESE - RME
1ER T A& T HEE A K#%22,000,0007T °
itk - HEFWhole Sinoz & & B R 1B M
F1FFARRZE——F+=-A=1+—
B &HGE BB nHREk EBITR o 2 H
EER=ZE—-F=A—H=x/H  RELZ
FEH ARB21,000,0007T © X3 5 I E
EERANSEE -

Etsc%’f%ﬁﬁu:miﬁm ”14 EE%TZEQ

BERXSREAAFEE
T4AZ ZIHERTE °

in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 EERHMENK
The Group The Company
rEE N
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E--fF | ZE——-& | ZE--F | ZB——F%
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | AR¥ETT
Notes payable EREE 360,327 205,909 - -
Creditors and accrued charges ERFERENER 3,240,440 | 3,216,285 1,197 3,468
Amounts due to related FEHEEERE
companies (note 36(b)) (K EE36(b)) 334,858 350,211 - 12,515
Derivative cash flow hedging TEBREREAIA
instruments - 3,275 - 3¥S
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB LD RFRE - = 402,248 369,060

3,935,625 3,775,680 403,445 388,318

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

All of the trade and other payables apart from amounts due to

subsidiaries are expected to be settled within one year.

The above balances with related parties are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in the Group’s trade and other payables are trade
creditors and notes payable of RMB2,651,635,000 (2011:
RMB2,597,204,000) with the following ageing analysis as of the

reporting date:

22 EBER H BN FOE (F)

BRIE(T BN RIFIAS » FTEEERHAM
BNFRERRR - FAEE -

LLEFB AR A T AR 2 HEG R EIE
A TIHERREREE -

AEFBvEERHEMENTERIESERE
TREREMNEZE AKE2,651,635,000
T (ZZE——%F: AR #¥2597,204,000
7T RIEBZREDOMAOT :

The Group The Company
r5H AN

2012 2011 2012 2011

—ER-—F| ZB——F | ZB-_F | ZB——F

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARETR | ARBTR | ARBTR | AR¥ETR

Uninvoiced purchases REERZE KB 920,124 | 1,009,128 - -

Within 30 days of invoice date BEHZ=THR 1,668,810 1,537,426 - -

31 to 60 days after invoice date BEAB=T—ZA~TH 51,351 32,784 - =

61 to 90 days after invoice date BREHEAT—ZNTH 1,562 762 - -
More than 90 days after BREHBEBATH

invoice date 9,788 17,104 - -

2,651,635 2,597,204 - -

23 BANK LOANS 23 SRITER
The Group The Company
rEE AN

2012 2011 2012 2011

—EF-—F| ZB2-——F | ZB-_F | ZB——F

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | AR®TR
Long-term bank loans due R—FRIB 2R

within 1 year RITER 1,258,192 74,953 177,086 -
Long-term bank loans due R—FREH2RE

over 1 year RITER - 687,441 - 177,057

1,258,192 762,394 177,086 177,057

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s bank loans are secured/ RZEBE——F+ZHB=+—H &xEBEZ

guaranteed as follows:

RTSREER EROT

The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—8--%5| =8——f | —8-=5| —2——#&
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARSTR | ARBTR | ARBTR
Secured bank loans 2EARITERX
- Secured by assets held - UEREBrEE

by the Group I 1 1,258,192 762,394 177,086 177,057
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN)

23 BANK LOANS (Continued) 23 SRITEM (&)
At 31 December 2012, the Group has drawn down R-ZEB——-—H+=ZA=+—H ~&£H
floating rate bank loans of USD200,000,000 (equivalent to 2 12 BUF B F = 4R 17 & 5££200,000,0005%
RMB1,258,192,000) (2011: USD28,000,000 (equivalent to T (HHER AR ¥1,258,192,0007T) (==
RMB177,057,000)), bearing interest at three-month London —— % : 28,000,000 T ((HER AR
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 3.25% per annum, which 177,057,0007¢)) @ #H={E B B RITE
are secured by the share capital of certain of its subsidiaries. 2#FE (RBBTEZERE]) MER =R
As set out in note 1(b), these bank loans were drawn from 3.25%5T B - AE THK B A B 2 BRAE
term loan facilities which expire on 31 December 2018 with A RIBEME1(0) » LLERITEREUE
installment repayments scheduled during their terms. The HEFMELAMER  R=ZZ—)\F
bank loans have been classified as current liabilities as at +=-—B=+—B2H TAEARIZERD
31 December 2012 as the Company breached certain loan KREHOHEEZE N-_ZE——5+_-A4
covenants as at that date. =+—H0 WERTERER=-ZF——-F
T A=+—A2EARBER  BAA
ARERERETEREDN -
At 31 December 2011, the Group had drawn down floating R—BE——F+=-A=+—H K&
rate bank loans of RMB268,140,000 and USD 50,340,000 ERIIFHINRBITERARYE
(equivalent to RMB317,197,000), bearing interest at over 268,140,000 T % 50,340,0003% &t (%
five years’ People’s Bank of China lending rate multiplied M AR #317,197,000T) * D BlREF
by 1.275 per annum and three-month LIBOR plus 4% per FERARBTEFALERE RFU
annum respectively, which are secured by the share capital 1275k = B mBRITR XK B2 ME
of certain of its subsidiaries. In addition, Charoen Pokphand FZEA%ETE  TUETEHKE QT 2K
Group Company Limited (“CPG”), the Group’s ultimate holding BERF N REBZHARERA
company had issued a letter of undertaking for these loans FCharoen Pokphand Group Compa y
to the respective lending banks. These bank loans were fully Limited ([ CPG ) B &t & & 7 3 H &%
settled in 2012. R FHEERIRT - HEFRTERER
—E-_FRYEE-
24 OTHER LOANS 24 Hith B
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011

—g-_F | —B-——f | —8-_—F| —B——&
RMB’000 | RMB'000 [ RMB’000 [ RMB'000
ARBTR [ ARBTR | ARBTR [ ARBTR

Loans from third parties (note (i) £ =7 2 & (KEE) 55,100 55,093 - -
Loans from related companies HELEZER
(note (ii)) (B (i) 97,000 62,000 - =
Amounts due to a subsidiary BE—XWEBAF
(note (i) 2 FRE B & i) - - 15,740 17,008
152,100 117,093 15,740 17,008
Notes: it 3
()  The loans from third parties are unsecured and bear interest () IBYE=ZF2ERLEIER  ZFF
ranging from 1.81% to 5.90% per annum (2011: 2.08% to 5.31% E1.81%%E5.90% (=T ——F : FFI=
per annum). 2.08%%5.31%) 5T & °
(i) The loans from entities related to the Group’s ultimate holding (i) IAREERARERATZHEBLEZER
company are unsecured and bear fixed interest at 7.393% per HEKA - W IREE FRZE7.393% (==
annum (2011: 6.931% per annum). These transactions constitute —— & FEREE6.931%) T E - WEXH
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing BRETHRAEZ4AEERZ T ZEERS »
Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements AR RETRAE14AZTERRIFE o
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
(i) RMB14,546,000 (2011: RMB14,544,000) of the amounts due to a i B —XMBAAZHREARE
subsidiary bear interest at one-year LIBOR plus 2% per annum. 14,546,000 (=2 ——F: AR
The remaining amounts are non-interest bearing. The amounts due 14,544,0007T) & — FmBER TR ZEF E 0
to a subsidiary have no fixed terms of repayment. FFR2%TE o BT ZFIBIIEME - fE

N—RMBARZHREEEERD -
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BE-Z--F+-A=+-RLFE(KRIZEHTEN  UARBTHER)

25 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 25 siEfHES T

At 31 December 2012, the Group had obligations under finance R-B——F+-_B=+—8  x&EF =z
leases repayable as follows: EABEEEEEMT :
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—_F —E——
Present Present
value of the Total | value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEES REAS ﬁﬁﬁ RIKAEE
HREE TR ﬁ LIRE ﬁ#@
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 00_0
ARBTRT AR%BTn| ARBTR AR%TxR
Within 1 year ... T Byl 6,677 ... 24858 | 6,052 24,858
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMER 7,783 25,261 6,677 24,858
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBLFR 30,207 77,274 26,645 76,500
After 5 years &% 142,440 203,015 153,785 229,050
e iiii........_._..| . 180430 305,550 | 187,107 . 330,408
187,107 330,408 193,159 355,266
Less: Total future interest expenses i : A 3R A BB X 4258 (143,301) (162,107)
Present value of lease obligations HESEHE 187,107 193,159
26 PROVISIONS 26 B 1fE
Provisions have been made for the directors’ best estimate BRiEDEEHEBAAREBRREE THI/EsT
of the expected costs associated with the cancellation by the £ 2 78 89 p A4S & AR 15 [T 55 (b) P & (R 22 48
Group of certain new store projects and termination benefits EAGEMELESAR IHEFERESE
resulting from the organisation restructuring plan as set out in 2 E o BEMIFMT :
note 5(b). Provisions are summarised as follows:
The Group
rEH
Lease Termination
cancellation ber]efit Total
BUHFEETE SHKRLEE wmEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREET T ARBT T ARBT T
At 1 January 2011 R=ZF——F—H—H 551 - 551
Provisions utilised EFERAzRE (284) - (284)
At 31 December 2011 R=ZB——F+=A=+—H 267 - 267
At 1 January 2012 R==E——-—F—H—H 267 - 267
Provisions incurred BEsEE 21,014 42,908 63,922
Provisions utilised Rz EE (6,628) (1,230) (7,858)
At 31 December 2012 R=ZB——F+=A=+—H 14,653 41,678 56,331

The provision balance at 31 December 2012 is expected to be
utilised within one year.
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BE-Z-—FS+-A=+-RLFE(KRIEHHEN  UARBTHER)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 27 B RRBRA 2 BB
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the statement of financial position (a) BMEMRABRAZENEAFRET :
represents:
The Group The Company
A%E AR
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E-ZF| ZE——-F | ZB-ZF | =F——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRE | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR
Balance at the beginning FEBMER
of the year 18,899 16,705 - -
Provision for PRC income FERNTEFEH
tax for the year BiE 23,012 20,473 - -
PRC income tax paid EHZHRBERER (24,697) (18,279) - -
Income tax payables at EHmEH 2 FEEH
the end of the year REERR 17,214 18,899 - =
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised - b) ERRZELEHEEEREBE -
the Group NEE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERCEINRGSWHEMRRRR 2
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EEFRBEEE,(BE) 2BHAIBMH
position and the movements during the year are as follows: REESZNT :
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Property, use under
plantand operating Intangible
Tax losses equipment leases assets Others Total
Nx. EEREZ
BE BRtH
REFR k%% HEER ENEE Hitr L]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETR AR%Tr ARETR
Deferred tax arising from: FERBELR:
At 1 January 2011 R=ZE-—-%-F-H 112,843 7,485 (14,073) (52,949) 11,628 64,934
Credited/(charged) to profit A/ (B%) 2R
or loss (note 6(a)) (H#F6(a)) 6,030 (172) 944 2,678 67 9,547
At 31 December 2011 WZZ-—-%+=-A=1-H 118,873 7,313 (13,129) (50,271) 11,695 74,481
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 2) Yt EE KB 2 7 (Miz2) 5,895 (601) - (7,813) (748) (3,267)
Credited/(charged) to profit A/ (BI%) BEH
or loss (note 6(a)) (K&E6(a)) (53,914) (69) 943 3,289 5,618 (44,133)
At 31 December 2012 W=E-Z£+-B=+-H 70,854 6,643 (12,186) (54,795) 16,565 27,081
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BE-Z--F+-A=+-RLFE(KRIZEHTEN  UARBTHER)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised —
the Group (Continued)

(c)

(d)

An analysis of the net deferred tax asset and liability is set
out as follows:

2T BBRABRAZAER
(%&)

(b)

CRABCELENHEEERBE -
rEME (F)

?EE%EIEEE&EJE‘}%%‘EZ%M&D

2012 2011
A —2——F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR T ARBET T

Net deferred tax assets LL*FE HEEFAE 65,112 113,717
Net deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEEFRE (38,031) (39,236)
27,081 74,481

Deferred tax assets not recognised - the Group

() *ERZELEBERE-FEH

2012 2011
—E-—F —E2——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE TR ARET T
Tax losses HIEEE 882,541 961,653
Deductible temporary differences  FJ3E {1 2 ERF =58 166,968 111,890
1,049,509 1,073,543
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect tﬁtIEEﬁE%ZLﬁ*RIE‘%FIEE fef
of the above items as it is not probable that future taxable RER > AT AT EEESEEHSE T
profits against which the above items can be utilised will %*EEEZJL%T%EMR%J:;@IEa;k
be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. RERT 2 am Al o
Excluding the tax losses of the Company which do not BAATZFRIBEIESERE A
expire, the tax losses can be carried forward up to five MIEBEBEEITREBEEEEFTFERZLE
years from the year in which the loss originated, and will EERER WHRTHERRZE :
expire in the following years:
2012 2011
—E2-—fF .
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AR T T
2012 —E-——F - 397,016
2013 —=E—=fF 223,114 171,157
2014 —E—UF 116,396 108,042
2015 —E—HEF 182,723 169,987
2016 —E-RE 115,485 87,287
2017 —E—tF 216,654 -
854,372 933,489

Deferred tax assets not recognised - the Company

At 31 December 2012, the Company has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of accumulative tax losses
of RMB28,169,000 (2011: RMB28,164,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislation.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL 28 IR 7A<
(a) Authorised and issued share capital (a) ZERBEHITRA
2012 and 2011
—E-ZFRZE——F
No. of shares
B% 2
( 000) HK$’ 000
(F) FHE T
Authorised: EIE -
Ordinary shares at par value FRMEE0.02B T 2 EER
of HK$0.02 each 34,000,000 680,000
Series A convertible preference shares & RE{E0.02/8 T2
at par value of HK$0.02 each ARG AT B 1B SR AR 2,000,000 40,000
Series B convertible preference shares &R E{E0.02/8 T 2
at par value of HK$0.02 each BZR 5I AT I B £ IR 4,000,000 80,000
Series C convertible preference shares &R E{E0.02/8 T 2
at par value of HK$0.02 each CR I RE LR 4,500,000 90,000
Series D convertible preference shares &R E{E0.02/8 Tt 2
at par value of HK$0.02 each DZE 5 a3 IR 8 5o IR 2,500,000 50,000
2012 2011
ZB-ZF —E--F
No. of shares No. of shares
R R
(’000) RMB’000 ("000) RMB’000
(F) ARETTR (F) ARET T
Issued and fully paid: BRTRHE
Ordinary shares ERER
At 1 January R—B—H 9,184,414 185,865 9,184,414 185,865
Shares issued under share RERETET
option scheme BiTZRH 610,801 9,955 - -
Conversion 2k 1,276 21 - -
At 31 December R+=B=+-H 9,796,491 195,841 9,184,414 185,865
Convertible preference shares AR E £ R
At 1 January W—B—H 9,089,683 154,749 5,415,917 94,720
Issue during the year FRET 2,211,383 35,855 3,673,766 60,029
Conversion 2k (1,276) (21) - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+-H 11,299,790 190,583 9,089,683 154,749
Total at 31 December R+=A=+-AZE&H 21,096,281 386,424 | 18,274,097 340,614
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TERSTEAZAENBRATARERRES
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to ZRAEAERATRREASZEEER
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. —KRERE AL EREARAT ZF
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the BREEZERSEM

Company’s residual assets.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(@) Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, the total convertible preference shares
in issue include 1,518,807,075 (2011: 1,518,807,075) Series
A convertible preference shares, 3,897,110,334 (2011:
3,897,110,334) Series B convertible preference shares,
3,672,489,764 (2011: 3,673,765,764) Series C convertible
preference shares and 2,211,382,609 (2011: nil) Series D
convertible preference shares, respectively.

All the convertible preference shares are non-voting
shares. The holders of these shares are entitled to receive
the same dividends as the holders of ordinary shares.
In addition, the holders of these shares have the right
to convert any preference share into the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at the conversion price at the
rate of 1 to 1 each subject to the minimum public float
requirement as set out under the Listing Rules being
maintained. Adjustments to the conversion price are only
made upon dilutive and other events which are related to
the Company issuing new shares or convertible debts.

On 1 January 2012, 2,211,382,609 Series D convertible
preference shares of par value of HK$0.02 each were
issued as consideration for the acquisition of subsidiaries
as set out in Note 2. The fair value of the shares
issued amounted to HK$529,073,000 (equivalent to
RMB428,920,000) out of which HK$44,228,000 (equivalent
to RMB35,855,000) and HK$484,845,000 (equivalent to
RMB393,065,000) were recorded in share capital and
share premium, respectively.

On 29 May 2012, 610,800,660 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.02 each were issued at a price of HK$0.0687
per share (equivalent to RMB0.0560 per share) to settle
all the outstanding options granted on 6 June 2002.
Net proceeds from the shares issued amounted to
HK$41,962,000 (equivalent to RMB34,196,000) out of
which HK$12,216,000 (equivalent to RMB9,955,000) and
HK$29,746,000 (equivalent to RMB24,241,000) were
recorded in share capital and share premium, respectively.

During 2012, 1,276,000 Series C convertible preference
shares were converted to the same number of ordinary

shares.

On 23 December 2011, 3,673,765,764 Series C convertible
preference shares of par value of HK$0.02 each were
issued at a price of HK$0.22 per share (equivalent to
RMBO0.18 per share) to the qualifying shareholders
under an open offer. Net proceeds from the shares
issued amounted to HK$805,056,000 (equivalent to
RMB657,731,000) (after offsetting issuance costs of
RMB2,592,000) out of which HK$73,475,000 (equivalent
to RMB60,029,000) and HK$731,581,000 (equivalent to
RMB597,702,000) were recorded in share capital and
share premium respectively.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b) Terms and numbers of unexpired and unexercised
share options at reporting date

Details of the unexpired and unexercised share options at
the reporting date are set out in note 30(a) to the financial

29 RESERVES

28 A (#8)
(b) BARES F R B0 R o A7 G M AR 2 0

mREE

REE BRI RRITEBREZF
5 BPIR B3 & MY EE30(a) ©

statements.
29 fi#t &
(a) The Company (a) &2H
Retained
Share earnings/
Share option Exchange Hedging (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
REEAN/
ROEE BRERS EXffE HnidE  (RHER) a8
(Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (b))
(Ht3E()) (Mt () (Kt (c) (3 () GEL)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTr ARETR AR%Tr AREBTT AR%Trn
At 1 January 2011 R=B--%F-fA-H 741,430 53,841 (123,741) (6,734) 1,019,161 1,683,957
Loss for the year EEFRB - - - - (75,809) (75,809)
Other comprehensive income Hft2EWA - - (96,730) 6,734 s (89,996)
Total comprehensive income EER2EUALE
for the year - - (96,730) 6,734 (75,809) (165,805)
Issue of Series C convertible BCRIITRRE LR
preference shares (note 28(a)) GEZLE) 597,702 - - - - 597,702
At 31 December 2011 RIE-—-%+Z8=1-H 1,339,132 53,841 (220,471) = 943,352 2,115,854
At 1 January 2012 RZE-Z%-f-H 1,339,132 53,841 (220,471) - 943,352 2,115,854
Loss for the year EEFR - - - - (40,613) (40,613)
Other comprehensive income B 2EHA - - 434 - - 434
Total comprehensive income EE2EUALE
for the year = - 434 - (40,613) (40,179)
Issue of Series D convertible BDRSITRRE LR
preference shares (note 28(a)) (Hr&E28(a)) 393,065 - - - - 393,065
Shares issued upon exercise of  TERREMETRA
share options (note 28(a)) (HrsF28(a)) 24,2414 - - - - 24,241
At 31 December 2012 R-Z-—#+-8=t-H 1,756,438 53,841 (220,037) - 902,739 2,492,981
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29 RESERVES (continued)

(b) Distributability of reserves

(c)

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
distributions shall be payable out of the profits of the
Company. At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was HK$983,037,000 (equivalent to
RMB902,739,000) (2011: HK$1,032,956,000 (equivalent to
RMB943,352,000)).

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Ordinance of the Cayman
Islands.

Under the Companies Ordinance of the Cayman Islands,
share premium is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the difference
between the Group’s share of the fair value of the
associate’s net assets and the Group’s interest
in associate at the date the associate became a
subsidiary of the Group.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 1(t)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of entities outside the PRC. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(x).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
cash flow hedges in note 1(i).
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29 RESERVES (continued)

(d) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders and secure access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital
structure to ensure it is in compliance with any loan
covenants. As set in note 1(b), due to the loss incurred for
the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company breached
certain earnings and solvency related covenants of its
bank loan facility agreements as at 31 December 2012.
Subsequent to the year end, the Company has obtained
a waiver from the banks in respect of its non-compliance
with the financial covenants as at 31 December 2012.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio which is calculated by dividing bank and
other loans by total equity.

30 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The basis
of eligibility of any of the eligible persons to the grant of options
shall be determined by the Board of directors from time to time
on the basis of their contribution or potential contribution to
the development and growth of the Group. The original share
option scheme (the “Original Scheme”) was effective during
the period of 10 years from 31 May 2002. On 22 June 2012,
the shareholders of the Company approved to adopt a new
share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) and to terminate the
Original Scheme. All options granted under the Original Scheme
prior to its termination will continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the terms of the Original Scheme. The New
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from 22 June 2012
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The terms of the New Scheme and the Original Scheme are
similar. Under the terms of the New Scheme, the maximum
number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the New Scheme
and any other share option schemes to each eligible participant
within a 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the ordinary shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the New Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the ordinary
shares in issue from time to time.
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30 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Board of directors, which is not later than ten years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
New Scheme, if earlier. No vesting period is set for each grant
of options.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the
Board of directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Daily Quotation Sheets”) on the date of the
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Daily Quotation Sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Both the exercise price and the number of securities comprised
in each option outstanding are subject to adjustments in the
event of capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-division or
consolidation of shares or reduction of capital.

During 2012, there was no option granted to any employee
under the New Scheme.

(@) The number of share options of the Original Scheme at 31
December are as follows, whereby all options are settled

30 éﬁﬂgﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁZI%
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REBREEREz +FRMTIEHA
;ézuﬁ?&i) CBRARHZERENRERE

BRECTHEEHESIRE  ERTE
RUTz®SE  ((REBREEHR » K
NEABROREEBHESRZMAR QT
HeBRELR (BREMR] WD
B RAXARGARERELRA &
HEREZEENEBERS B2 FHKR®
B RiA2AZROEE -

BRESNRTEBREZTEERES
HEARERRT  EBR - 2HFREHR
D ERE AR ETHE -

RZZB-—_FR SEEABRERS
BATRTREMES -

(@ Rt=A=+—H FFET2BR
RSB RSIT AT AT L

by physical delivery of shares: BRI :
2012 2011
—%--F —F--F
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price  share options price share options
e EREHE TEE BREEE
Options granted BT zBERE:

- on 6 June 2002 -RZEB-EXAKRA - -| HK$0.06877 T 610,800,660
- on 10 November 2003 -RZEE=F+-A1H HK$0.18655% 7T 610,800,660 HK$0.18655% Tt 610,800,660
- on 24 May 2005 -RZEEREREA-TMA HK$0.10803 1t 610,800,660 HK$0.108038 1t 610,800,660
Total number of share options BREHELE 1,221,601,320 1,832,401,980

The above options granted vested immediately from the
date of grant and with a contractual life of 10 years. Each
option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. The options for the time being
outstanding may be exercised in whole or in part at any
time during the exercise period.
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30 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED U ABEREE 2RSS
TRANSACTIONS (continued) ()
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) REFETEREZHE RNEFS
options under the Original Scheme are as follows: TEBWT :
2012 2011
—g-Cf —F--
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of shares price of shares
E¥s Mg ¥
e g e i
Outstanding at 31 December RTZAZT-Be&R HK$0.1478 % 1,221,601,320]  HK$0.1218%  1,832,401,980
Equivalent to RER RMBA K %0.11970 RMBA &%0.0987C
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND N TREREERAAE
FAIR VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks AEBEEXEKBETIREE - RABE
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. & FIERINERDS ©
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk REEFE 2 ER R AEB RN 2B
management policies and practices used by the Group to KEBEEBRREMNNEELERRF
manage these risks are described below: BEYWOT :
(a) Credit risk (a) FERK
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to EECEERBETERBEENH
trade and other receivables. Management monitors the FERRHE SEEFEERKES
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis. e

As set out in note 36(b), the Group had receivables due
from its immediate parent, C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH”), and other subsidiaries and
associates of CPG, the ultimate holding company,
amounting to approximately RMB624 million (2011:
RMB359 million) as at 31 December 2012, which
represents approximately 74% (2011: 62%) of the
Group’s total trade and other receivables. Given CPG is
the Company’s ultimate holding company, the directors

consider that these amounts are fully recoverable.

Except for the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and other receivables.
Sales to retail customers are mainly made in cash or via
major credit cards. Cash and deposits are placed with
banks which the directors consider have sound credit

ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations
and obtain adequate finance from external parties or its
ultimate holding company to meet its debt obligations and
committed future capital expenditures as and when they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB3,030 million (2011:
RMB1,823 million). As set out in note 1(b), the Company
was in breach of certain financial covenants included in
the bank loan facility agreements as at 31 December 2012.
As a result, RMB1,206 million of the bank loans which
were scheduled to be repaid after 31 December 2013
have therefore been classified as current liabilities. The
Company obtained a waiver from the bank subsequent to
the year end in respect of the non-compliance as at 31
December 2012. A reassessment of the compliance of the
convenants is scheduled to be performed in September
2013 by the banks.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
considered the cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2013. In preparing
the cash flow forecast, the directors have considered
historical cash requirements of the Group which may
impact the operations of the Group during the next twelve-
month period. The directors are of the opinion that the
assumptions which are included in the cash flow forecast
are reasonable. However, as with all assumptions in regard
to future events, these are subject to inherent limitations
and uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions
may not be realised.

Based on the waiver obtained from the banks and the
cash flow forecast prepared (note 1(b)), the directors have
determined that adequate liquidity exists to finance the
working capital and capital expenditure requirements of
the Group for the forthcoming year.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 31 EREAKREERAAE (&)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REELE (&)
The following are the contractual maturities of financial UTHhEmaEsZOMR - 8k
liabilities, including estimated interest payments and TR BN RMBREEn R E

excluding the impact of netting agreements:

The Group K&
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ZOFERBERE

More than ~ More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1yearor lessthan less than ~ More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

-ERg  -F4E W%
BRI mERN  EEER nE# #aa REE
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETR AR%TR ARETRT ARETR ARET:R

31 December 2011 “B—-£4ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ##T£TEz&REE
Bank loans BER (118971) (136187 (454100 (112008 (912573 762,394
Other loans HEEH (123,039) - - - (123033 117,093
Notes payable, creditors EEE  BAFE

and accrued charges REAARER (3,422,194) - - - (3422,194) 3422194
Amounts due to related companies  FEftIREI ¥ 58 (350,211) - - - (350,211) 350,211
Obligations under finance leases ~ BEMEEM (24,858) (24,858) (76,500)  (229,050)  (355,266) 193,159

(4039267 (161,045)  (621,910) (341,055 (5,163277) 4,845,051

Derivative financial liabilities TETECERERE

Interest rate swap HEEHRS (3,275) - - - (3,275) 3,275
31 December 2012 “E-“E+-f=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ##T£IEz¢RERE
Bank loans RITER (1,273,129) - - - (1,273,123) 1,258,192
Other loans At EH (160,800) - - - (160,800) 152,100
Notes payable, creditors ERRE  BAFE

and accrued charges REGARER (3,600,767) - - - (3,600,767) 3,600,767
Amounts due to related companies  FEftREE R £ 58 (334,858) - - - (334,858) 334858
Obligations under finance leases ~ BMEMEST (24,858) (25,261) (77.274) (203,015 (330,408 187,107

(5,304406)  (25261)  (77.274) (203,015 (5,699.956) 5,533,024
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Company 22 7]

1 cREREER A AEE)

(b)

REBE SRR (E)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ZHFERRERM
More than ~ More than
Within -~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than  More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
—FRgy  -F%E MER
RE)- mER  BRER LE# R REE
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETx
31 December 2011 “B—-£4+Z8=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ##T£TEz&REE
Bank loans BITER (6,770) (13,785) (81,660) (112,005  (214,220) 177,057
Other loans HEEH (17,455) - - - (17,455) 17,008
Creditors and accrued charges EAFEREARTER (3,468) - - - (3,468) 3,468
Amounts due to related companies  FEff REIR¥ 58 (12,515) - - - (12,515) 12,515
Amounts due to subsidiaries EARBEARE (369,060) - - - (369,060) 369,60
(409,268) (13,785) (81,660) (112,005  (616,718) 579,108
Derivative financial liabilities fieIAZERER
Interest rate swap HZEHRS (3,275) - - - (3,275) 3,275
31 December 2012 “E-ZEtZA=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3{T£IE2¢HEE
Bank loans RITER (179,187) - - - (179,187) 177,086
Other loans & (16,157) - - - (16,157) 15,740
Creditors and accrued charges EARERENRTER (1,197) - - - (1,197) 1,197
Amounts due to subsidiaries EARBARZE (402,248) - - - (402248) 402,248
(598,789) - - - (598,789) 596,271
(c) Interest rate risk (c) A==
(i) Interest rate profile (i)  FIZEHELR

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, bank loans, other
loans, and obligations under finance leases.

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings
(interest-bearing liabilities less interest-bearing
financial investments excluding cash held for short-
term working capital purposes) at the end of the
reporting period.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

31 cREAREER A AEE)

(c) F=mpx (&)

(i)  Interest rate profile (Continued) ()  FIEEL (&
The Group R EE
2012 2011
—E--f “E--f
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate value interest rate value
R GilkS REE BAH = REE
RMB’000 RMB'’ 000
ARBTR ARBTR
Variable rate instruments: FBHFRIA:
Pledged bank deposits EHAZRTER 1.58% 214,831 1.81% 143,179
Cash and cash equivalents BeRALEH 0.75% 397,227 0.50% 222,460
Bank loans RTER 3.56% (1,258,192) 5.95% (762,394)
Other loans HEfER 1.81% (42,100) 2.08% (42,093)
(688,234) (438,848)
Fixed rate instruments: EEMNEIL:
Other loans A& 7.22% (110,000) 6.75% (75,000)
Obligations under finance leases ~ MEHRES(T 9.8%-10.03% (187,107) | 9.8%-10.03% (193,159)
(297,107) (268,159)
The Company EAT
2012 2011
“B-Cf —2—-
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate value interest rate value
BHA=E REE BHAZE REE
RMB’ 000 RMB'’ 000
ARBTR ARETR
Variable rate instruments: FEHAEIA:
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEE 0.02% 30,507 0.02% 17,155
Bank loans RITES 3.56% (177,086) 3.82% (177,057)
Other loans H 2.86% (14,546) 2.63% (14,544)
(161,125) (174,446)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i)  BRBEE ST
At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a change R-ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other dsr SR 21 OOTIE\%%E"‘%E;%
variables held constant, would increase/(decrease) the P o] S = e 15 1~ ) 1538
Group’s net loss and retained profits by the amounts m/ CRAD) AEE 2 BB FEE
/. =

shown below:

2012 2011
—E—_F —=E——
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%T AREET T
Variable rate instrument: FEHANERIA :
100 basis point increase 32 5010018 & 2 6,882 4,388
100 basis point decrease R 10018 £ 2 (6,882) (4,388)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

(d) Currency risk

The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations
are all based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to
significant currency risk in its retail operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from
bank loans held by certain PRC subsidiaries, which
are denominated in USD. At 31 December 2012, the
relevant bank loans amounted to USD172,000,000 (2011:
USD50,340,000). A 5% strengthening/weakening of RMB
against the USD would result in an decrease/increase
in the Group’s net loss and net assets of approximately
RMB54.1 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB15.9
million) had such change occurred at that date, assuming
all other risk variables remained constant.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions in the
future. Changes in the foreign exchange control system
may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign
currency demand and the Group may not be able to pay
dividends in foreign currencies to its shareholders.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December

2012 and 2011.

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the reporting date, the Company has issued two
guarantees to an independent third party which expire in 2025
and two guarantees to a bank which expire in April 2013 and
July 2013 respectively in respect of finance lease arrangements
entered into by its subsidiaries (see note 25). As at the end of
reporting period, the directors do not consider it probable that
claims will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the end
of the reporting period under the guarantees issued is 100%
of the future minimum lease payments under the two lease
agreements entered into by the subsidiaries of RMB100 million.

Annual Report 2012 44§

1 cREREER A AEE)

32

(c)

(d)

(e)

. g

R = E R ()
(i) BRE W ()

| B-H
e

\
L

St
juni]
=
N
=i
N
a1
pilrd
il
g
—
\I
N

oo
oo
m)th.g
die
— O

NFF

—g—:$+—ﬁ—+—
R N 2T 2 58 555
ZEGEFRREEFRIEZM
A E#54,100,0007T (=&
A R #15,900,0007T) ' %
ﬂE"“ﬁﬁ‘ﬁEﬂﬂﬂrﬁﬁﬁj |

e
ISPt en
o > -

n

T |
)

g Im

> ¢
WS R o MmF
B -

HHH R )ﬂﬁl*

TR o K

SE N
- 54 5% B I
e

o

A
VI

2
B

AN

<
=

S
19, 55 1 4 R0
ERNID R
B N =
B S
o L 3

=

B2
=

i | 1] 53¢
||

_FH

o
= | |
A

|

‘Pﬁ

M st |

i
=
a
k>
g:gl
\H
K
%.I:'.ﬁ
=+
it | |
%

LAy m

m D |
:\3_
A
He
P
i

\
/l

R|ER  AAFABLE=SFHWE
BRZZ-ZHFHHZER XARF K
RITBREMES IR -ZE-—=FHAR=
T-=FtRIMZER ARHENER
AlzMEAEZ B (RHE25) - RIS
IR ESAUARB U LAEMIERAS TRE
BAARRNABRE - ARARBHZERTRH
iﬁ*%*iﬁ—k%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’& BE:HIGRE
HEBBEZRREDHEENKZ100%5
A K %100,000,0007T ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 15 ¥ & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN)
33 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33 EEHE 2 AE
As lessee RAEAMEA
At 31 December 2012, total future minimum lease payments RZE—=-F+=ZH=+—H ' TABUH
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: EEHECARREBEENRIELERE
mE
The Group The Company
FEE LN

2012 2011 2012 2011
ZE-ZH | ZE-—F | ZB-ZF | ZE2——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR
Within 1 year —ER 510,741 436,333 - -
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERLER 364,951 375,314 - -
After 5 years hFE# 26,527 30,638 - =
902,219 842,285 - -

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
and store premises held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period up to 20 years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every 1 to 7 years to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
The store leases typically provide the Group with the ability
to cancel the leases within the lease period on payment of a
penalty and/or after a minimum period of leasing.

As lessor

Property rental income earned net of negligible outgoings
from subletting of the Group’s leased properties during the
year amounted to approximately RMB369,396,000 (2011:
RMB285,712,000).

At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:

AEENETHLAERIEMYE2EER
EARAAN - HE-—RZABHAEE—1
FOURBARTERAKEERER
e HENRBES -—ELFBMURR
mISEBMRR - LEAERERFRAE
B EREEREEASEREEHALL
XA ERR RRRERERETEUEE

ﬂ':o

AHBEA

RER AEB2HEWERAS KA
ROBOEAERBEZIENBARYE
369,396,000t (=& ——F : AR

285,712,0007T) °

RZE—Z-F+ZB=+—8  FaHUH
EERECARBREERKEHLATEN
T

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
=2—=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR® T AR®T T
Within 1 year —FR 169,504 121,800
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREZFR 86,594 45,626
After 5 years EF#% 7,316 6,350
263,414 173,776

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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33 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 months to 2
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental payments
disclosed above, the tenants have commitments to pay
additional rent of a proportion of turnover for certain sub-
leased properties if the turnover generated from those sub-
leased properties exceeds the predetermined levels. Contingent
rentals are not included in the above commitments as it is not
possible to estimate the amounts which may be payable.

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2012 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

SEBHE 2 AE (&)

HE-Rz2OBRPH=BEREMF - AR
BERAGRRGAEEESHE KL
KBEREEEVHRN ET2EMEXE
HELCEXRBBBEAE 2KFE - HFE
REREXBE oA THOBNEN A
& HRARBEFMABARNEHE UL
ZEEIRBELRES -

BEARELE

R-ZB—-F+-A=+—H RUBR
EEARBBEREENT

The Group
KE

2012 2011
—E-——F —Z2——F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR® T AR¥T T
Contracted for [EEEY 13,375 32,456
Authorised but not contracted for EHEEBRETH 462,944 254,639
476,319 287,095

All of the above capital commitments were made in respect of
the establishment of new hypermarket stores and renovation
work on existing stores.

35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
a Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, each of the Group and the
employee make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings, subject to a maximum of
HK$1,250 per month per employee. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Employees of the Group in the PRC participate in several
defined contribution retirement schemes organised separately
by PRC municipal governments in regions where the major
operations of the Group are located. The Group is required
to contribute to these schemes at rates ranging from 11%
to 22% (2011: 10% to 22%) of salary costs including certain
allowances. A member of the retirement schemes is entitled
to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion of the salary
at the retirement date. The retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired staff of the Group are assumed by
these schemes.

Annual Report 2012 44§

LA E A AR AR AR BT R
RBBAER B IREMRE -

B’ERKEF

REEZHEBZEESHBHMAES
(MaEEsrdll)  —ERBLETAEE
ZMAEE - RBBREBESEBIRG - A%
BrEESASREESRWA Z5%H 5
R REHRERSESS A1,250
BT AEEY BB ST 2 E-SED
BB RE SR -

AEBEHEZEESHENERTELE
WE APEMEBRFIREE S TE
RIEREE - REBZEAREFE RS
R (BFEE T2 #ifd11%ZE22% (=
TE——F 10%E22%) 2K o BIKEH
EREZERERBUESE 2EESH
EARIRER - REBFEBUETEIET
E?ﬁﬁﬁ&&*%ﬁ%ﬁéZﬂ%%ﬂ
5E -



Notes to the Financial Statements

== =

B 1% 3RS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z-——F+-A=1+-HLFE (BRIEHPI UAR¥ETHEN) 108

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the acquisition of subsidiaries and disposal (a) Ko

of Madang Lu Store business as disclosed in note 2 and

MTF"E&&%%E“SE%F%%% *
RE:

note 21 respectively, the Group entered into the following EERE A R &R IER A TCPG
material transactions with entities controlled by, or related e AR tECEAR %ZID—F °
to, the ultimate holding company, CPG during the year.
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
et B g%
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARET R
Continuing related party transactions: BEHABALZRS
Store merchandise sold to CPH and HEEFHE M TCPHE A%
its related entities (note (i)) (B EEG)) 670,217 821,781
Store merchandise purchased from Orient F% 8% JE #87 f B Orient Success
Success International Limited (“OSIL”) International Limited ([OSIL]) &
and its related entities (including CP China ~ HE B2 (23ECP China
Investment Limited Investment Limited
and its subsidiaries) (note (i)) REMBA ) (M) 278,252 160,327
Rental income from Chia Tai Commercial HEWABEABERHEEE
Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. BERARTEAERE] R
(“CTCREM”) and its subsidiary (note (i)) HITE A = (BEEE(d)) 18,060 17,710
Rental expenses to Shanghai HEIHINTFEBRHRER
Kinghill Limited (“SKL”) (note (i)) BRAR( LEFEE] (M) 18,000 18,000
Consulting fee paid to CTCREM (note (i) BEEAIAFEXRERE () 4,890 5,664
Master trademark fee paid to CPG (note (i) FEZEE A FCPG (HiiE(i) 838 736
Other related party transactions (note (iii): H 8B A £ 23X 5 (K& (ii)) :
Reimbursement of staff costs (note (iv)) EERAERE (K (v)) 47,874 80,706
Bank facility undertaking fee payable to CPG FE{JiR TR E A& & FH FCPG 2,113 21,801
Proceeds from loans ﬁ%’ﬂz%’klﬁ 420,000 =
Repayment of loans BEE 385,000 122,713
Interest expenses in respect of other loans Eﬁifﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁ A2 A 9,194 9,891

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

These related party transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

This related party transaction constitutes continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, however it is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
however they are exempt from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The employment contracts of certain individuals who
previously worked for the Group but now work for CPH
and its related entities on a full-time basis remained with
the Group. The employment costs of such individuals were
reimbursed by CPH and its related entities to the Group.
Total staff costs disclosed in note 5(b) are stated net of such
reimbursement.

In addition to the other loans due to related companies as
disclosed in note 24, the Group had the following balances

36 EAHBALZXRS (&)

(a)

(b)

(&

&)
P&

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

LLEHBEAL 2R S B EmRA
BUAEERT 2HERERZ KA
DA EFRIE ETRAIE14ATZ
BERE -

LHEALTZRS
4AZEEERT 25
- R e R RS

5= o

LEHBAALZXZBR ETHRL
BUAREET ZBEERS - AW -
RETHRAFVMAETTREARKE -

B E
B E
AET

A

B
& 2R
4 R

bl
b
i3

ETERAEEI{EEREABCPHKR
HERCE(2B I AT ZER
BHNMRERAEB - BNEIZ
EBERABCPHE EHBEMERE
FAER o RHEE5(b)IRE 2 EE K
RBEBOMBRZEE -

BRAE(S MEBA 3 2 A B RN i e 24
WES  AREERAR R AR

with related companies: T
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—_E-_FE| ZE——F | ZE—Z-F| ZBE——F&
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR
Due from related companies FEUWHEBE %A
- CPH and its related entities ~ —CPHR HiEEE % 617,508 353,593 - 7,488
- OSIL and its related entites =~ —OSILKk HiEE % 2,422 2,350 - =
- CTCREM and its subsidiary —EABEREKERQF 4,217 2,976 - -
- Other related companies -HiEEtE 8 7 5 4
624,155 358,926 5 7,492
Due to related companies Pt R ERE
- CPG —CPG 835 21,664 - 12,515
- CPH and its related entites =~ —CPHR EMEL% 255,478 238,730 = =
- OSIL and its related entities ~ —OSILK E AR % 31,459 34,568 = =
- SKL -LE%wE 33,484 26,297 = =
- Chia Tai Land Company —EXEHERAF
Limited 10,616 25,293 = =
— Other related companies —HinraRa % 2,986 3,659 = =
334,858 350,211 = 12,515
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F—=

COMPANIES

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and
ultimate holding company to be Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the Kingdom of
Thailand. None of these entities produces financial statements
available for public use.

38 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The selection of critical accounting
policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors
to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. Notes 14 and 31 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment and financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

38

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 36 ERMHBALTZRS (1)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) EEEBAEMS
Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group, TEBFEEEAEZHE - BIFK
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as HTWECXNTFARAATNEE 2S5
disclosed in note 7, is as follows: M
The Group
AEH

2012 2011
—g--%| =—B——f
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR® T AR T
Short-term employee benefits HEHEEREAR 29,678 23,927
Post-employment benefits S EEEREF 42 40
Termination benefits EHRIEEE - =
Equity compensation benefits ERXERR - =
29,720 23,967
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note e BEaERMEERA] (R K

5(b)). 5(b)) 7

37 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING 37 EBERBRAERAT

R-ZEB-——F+=-F=+—-H EBESEA
RADNTZEEERABDANEB 4
BRE B M 2C.P. Holding (BVI)
Investment Company Limited @ & &%
B D 7 A R %= B & ft 5 32 ZCharoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited ° It
ERAMERBLABRATMER Z KR

%:o

R |

EEt KA B S RISETNE > LREBEL
BRHMEZET SREREBRTYH
ARBHHARKSE - EERAGES Y
BHER  FER2RAEAEEES TR
R2BEE FEZSHXERZHABRE
e REABARE & - RS A RE R KRR
BECHRE - MF14RINEBEEERE
BEREBMIAE2BRRRESARBEE
yzﬁﬂ o Hittfh st NAMAR 2 EERR
nr :
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38 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Going concern

The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s net current liabilities of approximately
RMB3,030 million. The directors consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements using
a going concern basis. Further details are set out in
notes 1(b) and 31(b). Should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern, all of the Group’s assets
and liabilities would have to be stated at net realisable
value. In particular, the non-current assets and the non-
current liabilities would have to be reclassified as current
assets and current liabilities respectively and provision for
contingent liabilities may be required as a result.

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group reviews annually
the estimated useful lives of the assets and their residual
values, if any. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
interests in subsidiaries, fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets may not be recoverable, these
assets may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
“Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts of these
assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable, except
for goodwill which is tested annually for impairment.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount. Determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the net selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling prices because quoted market
prices for the Group’s assets are not readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and amount of
operating costs.
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38 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Deferred tax

At 31 December 2012, the Group has recognised a
deferred tax asset in relation to tax losses carried forward
of certain PRC subsidiaries, as set out in note 27. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised. In
assessing the need to recognise a deferred tax asset,
management considers all available evidence, including
projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies,
historical taxable income, and the expiration period of the
losses carried forward. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits are less than expected, a reversal of a
deferred tax asset may arise, which will be recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal takes
place.

39 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As set out in note 1(b), the Company was in breach of certain
financial covenants included in bank loan facility agreements
as at 31 December 2012. Subsequent to the year end, the
Company obtained a waiver from the banks in respect of
its non-compliance with the financial covenants as at 31
December 2012. Under the bank loan facility agreements, the
next assessment of the Company’s compliance with covenants
is scheduled to be performed in September 2013.

ZE+ZRAE=T-HLEFE(BRBEHRBIN UARBTHEN)

38 &5t fl &t &l (&)

(d) ELEBIIR

RIE——F+ZH=1+—H  &&
B mAHERKMF27E T HEH
BRI IEEE AL SRR — B
HEE EEMBEEZERITEH
MRREZRHEF 2 S 0K 0 7] £ A
ZEE  c NiMaBRA—BELEHIEE
ER EEEBZEMEUSZEE
FIFFEH R R ERFT WA ~ FAEETE
REE - BERERBWA » REBGE
ZEH - EERARREZRBTERER
FEHR » —IEIEFER B & B 3 T R

| Wiz EEHIE 2 HIEERRN

1B e

39 MEHBRFARER

REMFIO)FRE  R=F—Z—F+=8
=t+—H ARRERETRTETRE
EmA MR - ARBACREBFS
BRHER-_ZT-—F+-A=+—HXE
S BZAOMBGRITZHR - RIBRTT
EXmEGS  TREARFAMBRY 2
BIARERZER-E-—=FhBET -
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40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

HEENBRAMBBREZBBR/IL - FBS
B AEEEM S SR R ER - M
ARBE_Z-—_F+_A=1t—HILF
FE A R R I AR TS B 7 3R U ERAR ©

Effective for accounting
period beginning on or after

REFBEARREN

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements -
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)

HKAS 28, Investment in associates and joint ventures (2011)

ZRE(ZE——F)
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
EENE

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures -
Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation -
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures -
Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.
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A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

Summary of Financial Information

MBEERBE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
(MARMTREN)

FEEBEABAMRFEZXE EERAE

last five financial years is as follows: BMEWT :
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“EENE “EENE —Z-ZF —2--F —E-ZF%
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RESULTS ES
Turnover 2ER 5,583,633 8,783,361 9,374,500 10,019,305 10,677,425
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRHA (B8 /&H (37,310) (214,571) 340,656 34,686 (324,494)
Taxation B (3,228) (21,161) 8,666 (10,926) (67,145)
(Loss)/profit for the year £E(FR) J8A (40,538) (235,732) 349,322 23,760 (391,639)
Attributable to: R AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company ADFRR (40,422) (235,732 349,322 23,813 (391,530)
Non-controlling interests FERER (116) - - (59) (109)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FR) RA (40,538) (235,732) 349,322 23,760 (391,639)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 7,448,417 7,009,128 6,649,927 6,909,213 7,717,340
Total liabilities Bef (7,060,956) (6,874,267 (5,372,729) (4,906,728) (5,644,600)
NET ASSETS EEFH 387,461 134,861 1,277,198 2,002,485 2,072,740
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR A
Total equity attributable to KA R RREMN
equity shareholders of the Company ERAH 387,461 134,861 1,275,198 2,000,538 2,070,902
Non-controlling interests FERES = = 2,000 1,947 1,838
TOTAL EQUITY BEaE 387,461 134,861 1,277,198 2,002,485 2,072,740
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Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman)
Mr. Narong Chearavanont (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yiu-Cheong, Ed (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Michael Ross (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Yang Xiaoping (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Li Wen Hai (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong

Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara

Mr. Itthaporn Subhawong
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Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Audit Committee

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit
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Remuneration Committee
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman)
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Mr. Viroj Sangsnit

Mr. Songkitti Jaggabatara
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Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Company Secretary
Ms. Choi Yi Mei
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Ms. Choi Yi Mei

Registered Office
P.O. Box 309
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Hong Kong
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Hong Kong
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Hong Kong

Cayman Islands
Maples and Calder
P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

Share Registrars

Hong Kong

Tricor Progressive Limited
26th Floor

Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Cayman Islands

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman lIslands

Share Listing
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00121

Company Website
http://www.cplotuscorp.com

Corporate Information

~HEEH

BB A
EEHSTMEHAT
EBPR

EATE T
AFRENE

FEARRT

The Siam Commercial Bank Public
Company Limited

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

EEIRTT

EERE[

O
FRERMSEHAR
)
EITE T N\SR
BLARE+#

FHEHE

Maples and Calder
P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104

Cayman lIslands

R iBFETE

&

EEREERRQT
EBERRER=TN\R
THEEROLZTRE

HEHS

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

IR £ T ith B
EBHBERZAAERLT
B 1K5% - 00121

DAL

http://www.cplotuscorp.com

C.P. Lotus Corporation M&sETEH R



117

Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information

MEBEBERERRREHR

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2013

Annual Results announced

—E-CFENBER

22 February 2013

BEAMZEEFEE —E-—=F5-A=+=H
Annual General Meeting June 2013
BREFRE —E-=FXA
2012 Interim Results August 2013
—E-CFRHEE —E-=F)\A
Financial year end 31 December
M EEAL R +=A=+—-H
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION KRE¥&E %
Share Capital & 2 Nominal value
H{E
As at 31 December 2012 HK$ Number of shares HK$’ 000
R=FB-—=-—F+=HA=+—H BT BR & THET
Ordinary Shares & & %
Authorised £ 0.02 34,000,000,000 680,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up E & TR#Z 0.02 9,796,491,070 195,930
Series A Convertible Preference Shares AZ 5| AR E £ R
Authorised £ & 0.02 2,000,000,000 40,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 31T R & 2" 0.02 1,518,807,075 30,376
Series B Convertible Preference Shares BRI TR E LR
Authorised £ & 0.02 4,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 1T R4 2" 0.02 3,897,110,334 77,942
Series C Convertible Preference Shares CZ 5l A& R 8 £ %
Authorised £ & 0.02 4,500,000,000 90,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 21Tk #2** 0.02 3,672,489,764 73,450
Series D Convertible Preference Shares DZ 5| o[ IR 8 % I%
Authorised £ & 0.02 2,500,000,000 50,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* B 31T R4 2" 0.02 2,211,382,609 44,228
* Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited * HC.P. T'i‘)lding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited#=
**  Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited & Public o HC.P. ﬁoldin %BVI) Investment Company
Limited&’&%‘ﬁ%

Shareholding R 2 % of issued

share capital
As at 31 December 2012 Number of shares B ETRA
R=ZB-=—F+=ZHA=+—H % & ZEDH
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited* 6,788,319,021 69.29%
Public & Others 2R K& H b 3,008,172,049 30.71%
TOTAL #2 % 9,796,491,070 100%

# C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited is an indirect wholly- ¢ C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
owned subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited LimitedJ5Charoen Pokphand Group

Stock Code M 171X 5%

Company Limitedz —RE 2 E N E A 7

Hong Kong Stock Exchange BB 00121
Reuters Reuters 0121 HK
Bloomberg Bloomberg 121 HK
Request for Feedback BERER

Please email to contact@cplotuscorp.com for any comments on our (IS AAT T AERKEETAEZER  EEH

public announcements and disclosures.
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